From: Nathan Burns

To: Jason Lonergan; Michael Whitehead; Heidi Paris; Jacilyn Hackett
Subject: FW: SAGA fundraiser
Date: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 2:57:00 PM

Thoughts on this?

Thanks,
Nate

From: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 2:52 PM

To: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>; MaryJean Flanagan <flanaganm@nashua.edu>
Subject: SAGA fundraiser

Nate and MJ,

The SAGA group would like to do one more event/fundraiser this year. | know there is an
official process for holding fundraisers (one of these days I'll remember what itis. . .) so, |
wanted to reach out early to see if this is possible.

The idea is to make 12-15 small posters explaining the different gender and sexual orientation
flags and hang them in a main hallway. Each poster would be no bigger than 11x17 and would
contain an image and description of one of the flags associated with members of the
LGBTQIA+ community. The SAGA group would host an informative 'walk' around the area
contributing additional information one afternoon to anyone interested. Otherwise, the
posters would hang in the hall and people could visit and educate themselves at their leisure.

Heres' the fundraising part of it. We would sell, for a dollar, a card that says, "I'm proud to be
"and people could write what they identify as, and we'll hang it on the wall

outside the cafeteria near the pride flag. This would be a very visible way to bring members of
our hidden community out without exposing anyone because the cards would be anonymous.

So that's the idea. Thoughts?

MJ, | know there's paperwork I'm supposed to do to accompany this request, but | can't find it.
Would you be kind enough to send it to me again?

We're hoping (if we get permission) to hang the posters on May 21st and offer the talk on
May 25th. We would sell the cards all that week after the 1:25 bell as students leave (the
added bonus is if anyone tries to be inappropriate, we will be able to intercept the cards
before they are hung). This would mean the cards would hang through the last days of the
school year in June (Pride month).


mailto:burnsn@nashua.edu
mailto:lonerganj@nashua.edu
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| know none of us are busy right now. If this can't happen, | understand. If it can, that would
be great.

Thanks for everything, Paul

Paul Menard (he/him/his)
Nashua High School North



From: Nathan Burns

To: Jason Lonergan; Michael Whitehead; Heidi Paris; Jacilyn Hackett
Subject: FW: SAGA fundraiser
Date: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 2:57:56 PM

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



From: Melissa Sue Bartolomei

To: Paul Menard

Cc: Alexis Baker; Brandi MacDonald

Subject: Pride Flag or stickers?

Date: Thursday, November 16, 2023 10:03:53 AM
Hi Paul,

The Faculty Book Club is currently reading LGBTQ themed books this month. We are
working on our monthly bulletin board display (sadly a little late this month) and were
wondering if you have any flags or stickers we could embellish our board with?

Thanks,

Melissa, Lexi, or Brandi

P.S.--If you do have them we can pick them up or you can send a student with them to the
library.


mailto:bartolomeim@nashua.edu
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From: Paul Menard

To: Nathan Burns
Subject: Pride Flag
Date: Thursday, March 4, 2021 11:34:49 AM

Nate, | know you mentioned that | could tell/show you where we would like the flag and you
would have Ben hang it up. How exactly would you like me to do that? | dropped the ball on

this and I'd like to recover my fumble.
Thanks, Paul

Paul Menard (he/him/his)
Nashua High School North


mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0D11CE463D40423183A3EE84E224DB6E-PAUL MENARD
mailto:burnsn@nashua.edu

From: Erin Knoetig

To: idi Paris; Katie C
Subject: Re: Photo scavenger hunt.....

Date: Tuesday, September 14, 2021 6:52:38 AM

The place where there are metal waves in the sky C1

Where can you find a Bitmoji of Ms Merrill. B3

Where veggie life blooms at school Garden teacher entrance.
A realm of applause Auditorium

The place where hunger gets resolved Cafe

Your entire team jumping in mid-air.

The blue man reading the book Media Center

The place.... cut for style Al

Painted comic strip characters that never grow up and their strip name is the name of | Art Wing
something that most of us can eat.

There is a white trellis with leaves as well as 3 words on the wall of this office. MJ office

This is a closet that opens the door to a brighter future. Catie’s Closet

Find the Vending machine that houses smartfood in slot #36.

This houses the Zapenas and Reyes achievements. Athletic Dept
The place where things Green grow... Green House
School Mission Statement.... Main Hallway
The door covered in photos B109
Painting on the wall of sunflowers Art wing

Your entire team in order by height.

Hall of windows... B2-C2

Titan T representational of many foreign cultures D3

The pride flag and the colors of the transgender pride flag all combined into one. Main Hall
Students names painted on a mural Main stairwell
The place where music flows. Music room

Vending machine with lemon flavored water- D6.

Places where there are paint Titan T Athletic, Gym, Main stairs

Your entire group near the Nashua North Sign Outside

Erin Knoetig

NASHUA HIGH SCHOOL NORTH
Photography

Advanced Photography

To set up REMIND app for class notifications...
Photography: Text- 81010 Message- @nhsnphoto
Advanced Photography: Text- 81010 Message- @nhsnaphoto

From: Heidi Paris <parish@nashua.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, September 14, 2021 6:34 AM
To: Erin Knoetig <knoetige@nashua.edu>
Subject: Re: Photo scavenger hunt.....

It says i need access

From: Erin Knoetig <knoetige@nashua.edu>

Sent: Monday, September 13, 2021 1:39 PM

To: Heidi Paris <parish@nashua.edu>; Katie Closs <Clossk@nashua.edu>
Subject: Photo scavenger hunt.....

Let me know what you think....

Google Docs - create and edit documents online, for free.


mailto:knoetige@nashua.edu
mailto:parish@nashua.edu
mailto:ClossK@nashua.edu
mailto:knoetige@nsd42.net
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1GvNXquCYd6i2ghHDU75oZgq4_v2JUWvtIUskoA-C8ro/edit?usp=sharing

Create a new document and edit with others at the same time -- from your computer, phone or tablet. Get stuff done with or
without an internet connection. Use Docs to edit Word files. Free from Google.

Erin Knoetig

NASHUA HIGH SCHOOL NORTH
Photography

Advanced Photography
knoetige@nsd42.net

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

To: Melissa Sue Bartolomei
Subject: Re: Pride Flag or stickers?
Date: Thursday, November 16, 2023 11:08:27 AM

I do have some flags and stickers. I'll send them down either this block or 4th.

Paul Menard (he/him)

On Nov 16, 2023 10:03 AM, Melissa Sue Bartolomei <bartolomeim@nashua.edu> wrote:
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
Date: Thursday, November 16, 2023 11:09:53 AM

That would be great, thanks!

Melissa Bartolomei
(she/her/hers)

English Department
Nashua High School North

From: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>

Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 11:08 AM

To: Melissa Sue Bartolomei <bartolomeim@nashua.edu>
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

Subject: RE: Pride Flag

Date: Thursday, March 4, 2021 12:13:00 PM
Paul,

Let’s plan for a day next week. We can meet during your plan or after school. Let me know what

works for you.

Nate

From: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>
Sent: Thursday, March 4, 2021 11:35 AM

To: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>
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
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0d11ce463d40423183a3ee84e224db6e-Paul Menard

From: Nathan Burns

To: Paul Menard

Subject: RE: Pride Flag

Date: Thursday, March 4, 2021 3:29:00 PM
Paul,

| just sent an invite for Wednesday. I’'m booking up fast with evals so that is the earliest | can do.
Hope that works for you.

Nate

From: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>
Sent: Thursday, March 4, 2021 12:57 PM

To: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>
Subject: Re: Pride Flag

Sounds great, thank you. | have plan blk 4 and stay at school for my office hours. Every day
works for me so you an pencil me for what works best for you.

Paul Menard (he/him/his)
Nashua High School North

From: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>
Sent: Thursday, March 4, 2021 12:13 PM
To: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>
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



From:

To: Nathan Burns
Subject: Re: SAGA Club"s Idea
Date: Thursday, September 3, 2020 4:07:57 PM

Please be cautious
This email was sent from outside the Nashua School District

I'm very glad to hear you are open to our idea! If not the flag pole, maybe we could do it
outside the cafeteria or near the main entrance.

On Thu, Sep 3, 2020, 12:37 PM Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu> wrote:

.’

| am definitely open to this idea. We won’t be able to hang it on the flag pole outside since that is
reserved for the US and state flags. We can certainly find a spot within the school to hang it,
however. Let me know where you are thinking and how big the flag would be and we can find a

spot to display it.

Mr. Burns

rrom: I

Sent: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 8:43 PM

To: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>
Subject: SAGA Club's Idea

:Please be cautious

EThis email was sent from outside the Nashua School District

Dear Mr. Burns,

My name is | if and | am the president of North’s SAGA club. | am emailing you
because there is something | would like to discuss with you.

| would like to know if it is possible to get a pride flag hung up on the flag pole outside the
school. Of course, SAGA can provide the flag, but | would like to know if it is possible.
Having a pride flag in the school, even if it isn’t on the flag pole, would be an amazing
way to show all of our LGBTQ+ students that they are welcome in this school. As a
student who has been scared to be myself my whole life, | think something as simple as a
pride flag could not only make our out students more comfortable, but also our closeted

students.


mailto:burnsn@nashua.edu
mailto:burnsn@nashua.edu

High school is a rough time for many students, especially our queer students, however |
believe this is a good and subtle way to make people feel more comfortable in not only
their school environment, but also with themselves. Being LGBTQ+ is not a bad thing and
| would love for there to be a way to really show that.

I hope you will consider what I've said and | hope we can reach an agreement on this.
Sincerely,



From: Paul Menard

To: Nathan Burns

Subject: Re: SAGA fundraiser

Date: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 11:54:35 AM
Nate,

Actually, one of our members had been working on that very idea as a joint fundraiser with
the junior class. | haven't heard anything recently, | should check on that.

Paul Menard (he/him/his)
Nashua High School North

From: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>

Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 11:52 AM

To: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>; MaryJean Flanagan <flanaganm@nashua.edu>
Cc: Jason Lonergan <lonerganj@nashua.edu>

Subject: RE: SAGA fundraiser

Paul,

I’'m good with this moving forward.

Also —Jason had an idea for a fundraiser or two that might be good. Not sure if you saw the baseball
team’s shirts with the Titan T and the USA Flag across it, but he was thinking it might be nice to sell
shirts with the Titan T and the various gender/orientation flags and maybe sell stickers like that as
well. Just wanted to pass that along.

Nate

From: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>

Sent: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 2:52 PM

To: Nathan Burns <burnsn@nashua.edu>; Marylean Flanagan <flanaganm@nashua.edu>
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
Date: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 12:33:50 PM

Sounds great - keep me posted.
Get Outlook for i0S

From: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, May 12, 2021 11:54:32 AM
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

To: Paul Menard <menardp@nashua.edu>; Marylean Flanagan <flanaganm@nashua.edu>
Cc: Jason Lonergan <lonerganj@nashua.edu>

Subject: RE: SAGA fundraiser

Paul,

I’'m good with this moving forward.

Also — Jason had an idea for a fundraiser or two that might be good. Not sure if you saw the baseball
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



From: Taylor Paguette

To: Kallie Provencher

Subject: Safe Space Resources

Date: Wednesday, February 2, 2022 9:09:52 AM

Attachments: Safe Zone Foundational Curriculum - Facilitator Guide 5.0.pdf

GLSEN English SafeSpace Book Text Updated 2019 edited(1).pdf

Hello!

After our conversation | did a little research on Safe Space curriculums for educators. | really liked
the Safe Zone site as it provides a full (free) curriculum and great resources. Something I'll bring back
to the group as well but even if Garth decides to table the teacher component of our LBGTQ training
maybe something we can bring up to Nate about offering as PD for teachers in the future?

https://thesafezoneproject.com/resources/#Handouts
https://www.glsen.org/activity/glsen-safe-space-kit-solidarity-Igbtg-youth
Thanks,

Taylor Paquette

McKinney Vento Coordinator
Nashua School District

8 Titan Way

Nashua, NH 03063

(603) 966-2511 office

(978) 358-1215 cell (Google Voice)
paquettet@nashua.edu
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About this Guide

We created this guide to help you facilitate Safe Zone trainings. It contains all of the activities,
instructions, and resources you need to run an introductory LGBTQ/Ally training for your organization,
campus, or community. We created this specifically for your use!

Within this guide you will find:

v A detailed outline of each activity of the training;

v Participant sheets and handouts necessary to facilitate the activities;
v Recommended group norms for the training;

v Participant feedback form; and

v Self evaluation/reflection form.

The key ingredient to a successful Safe Zone training is preparation. This guide should be read
through, examined, and practiced before the day of the training. Please do not facilitate a training by
reading this guide verbatim (other than where specified). Instead, we recommend using it as a
support tool as you facilitate your training.

We encourage co-facilitation! While there aren't explicit instructions included, all of the activities can
be co-facilitated smoothly with practice.

If you'd like to know more about some of the tools and techniques we use when we facilitate this
curriculum, check out our book Unlocking the Magic of Facilitation (szp.guide/utmof).

About this Curriculum

We wrote this curriculum based on over a decade of experience facilitating Safe Zone trainings, with
hundreds of workshops, experiments, trials, errors, and feedback. It's designed to be engaging,
effective, and fun.

The activities chosen (and omitted), the suggestions for how to facilitate them, and the order they're
in are all intentional. While you can certainly tweak, change, or totally overhaul this curriculum, we
ask that you do so with care. And consider giving it a shot as is first — it might just work.

This curriculum is flexible, and the training can be incredibly powerful for participants of all identities,
ages, educational backgrounds, and attitudes. Facilitate the group you're with: listen to them, respond
to their needs, and every activity that follows can be made relevant.

3 www.TheSafeZoneProject.com
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Training Timelines

Whenever possible, we recommend at least 3 hours for a Safe Zone training. Following are two
example timelines for for how you might run this curriculum.

2-Hour Training 3-Hour Training Timeline

15mins  Introductions & Group Norms 15mins  Introductions & Group Norms

S5mins  First Impressions S5mins  First Impressions

20 mins Core Vocabulary & Do/Don't Handout 35 mins Core Vocabulary & Do/Don't Handout

15 mins  LGBETQ Umbrella & Genderbread Person 30 mins LGBTQ Umbrella & Genderbread Person
10 mins  Break 15 mins Break

25mins  Privilege for Sale & Coming Out 35mins  Privilege for Sale & Coming Out

10 mins  Anonymous Q&A OR FAQ 15mins  Anonymous Q&A OR FAQ

15 mins  Scenarios 20 mins  5Scenarios

S5mins  Wrap-up & Feedback 10 mins  Wrap-up & Feedback

We know that most people can only do two hours, which is why we generally refer to this resource as
a “2-Hour Curriculum,” and all the times in the activity headers within this guide reflect that.

Make it your own

This curriculum is yours to change, improve, customize, or tailor however you need — the timeline is
no exception!

In general, we'd suggest you don't do shorter than 2 hours, and if you're doing longer don’t add more
activities: just give each activity more room to breathe. If you'd like more suggestions, visit
szp.guide/timelines.

Unlock the Magic

Transitions (segues) between activities are a crucial part of the activity introduction, and can help
move a group forward if they are stuck (or want to keep spending time) on a particular activity.

Plan your segues beforehand, with a particular phrase/concept/idea that you can pull from the group
at the end of one activity, that leads seamlessly into the next. For example, the last question in “First
Impressions” is about change over time; vocab is something that is always changing over time;
connecting these ideas can be your segue.
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Training Set-Up

When we say “Safe Zone,” a big part of what we're talking about is the training to be a learning
environment, a space where participants can take risks, be vulnerable, and learn — all in the face of
of stigmatizing social pressures. The hope is that later, after being trained, participants can then
create a similar environment for others in their life. The physical set-up of the room is a huge part of
that.

Try to get to the training room 30 - 45 minutes early to get everything set up, with some extra time in
case there are early participants who need your attention, or an unexpected hiccup (e.g., a locked
door, not enough seats).

The ideal room:
v/ Has moveable seats/desks/tables;

v Is big enough to accommodate all the participants in a circle or u-shape, with the facilitator(s)
at the top (like an umlaut: U)

v But not too much bigger than that (it gets hard to create a cohesive group or “safe” container)

Process Steps

1. Place a printed Participant Packet at each seat you want a participant to use
2. Distribute extra pens and blank index cards in little piles that are reachable by everyone

3. Write an intro message (and introduction steps) on the whiteboard / flipchart. Include your
name, pronouns, and contact information if you want your participants to be able to follow up
with you after (otherwise leave out contact info)

4. Prepare any other flipcharts (e.g., the Genderbread diagram) you'll be using

Make it your own

This curriculum doesn't require powerpoint/projector/screen, and it's intentionally low-tech. However,
if you prefer to use A/V (e.g., to play an video during your intro or closing, for FAQ, or for some other
reason), by all means set that up.

If you'd like more suggestions, visit szp.guide/setup.

Notes

A good room can make a training. A bad room can break it. We know that you won't always have
control of the room you're training in, and sometimes you'll have to make due with something that'’s
not ideal. Do what you can to find a room that works, or to rearrange your room until it does.
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Guide to Activity Guides

How we organize each activity, and what the different headings mean. The terms below the title
are what we use at TheSafeZoneProject.com to sort activities (szp.guide/activities), in case you want to

replace an activity with something similar.

Activity Type — Knowledge Level — Trust Needed — Time — Activity URL

Materials Setup
What supplies are required. What setup do you need to do prior to beginning
the activity.

Facilitator Framing

Purpose of the activity and important things for you to know in order to understand the activity.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

What you can reasonably hope to accomplish during the activity if facilitated well.

Process Steps

The piece-by-piece walkthrough to facilitate the activity (including example talking points).

Debrief Questions

Suggested questions (and in some cases sample answers) to make meaning from the activity.
Wrap-up

How to purposefully close the activity.

Make it your own

Ideas for modifying the activity.

Unlock the Magic

Facilitator tools and tips for making the most out of the activity.

Notes

Additional information to know or things to look out for in regards to this specific activity.
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Introductions

Housekeeping — 101 — Low Trust — 10 mins — szp.quide/intros

Materials Setup
e Whiteboard or sticky flip chart paper e Write out what you are asking your
participants to share so everyone can
read it

Facilitator Framing

e Introductions can be used to create buy-in from participants, get to know who is in the room,
set the pace/energy for the workshop, etc. Be sure to use your intro time purposefully to
accomplish the outcomes needed to create a productive learning space.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

e For you to know your participant’s names and pronouns.

e Participants will know your name, pronouns, and other relevant information about your role
as a facilitator.

e Participants will understand the general flow of the training.

e Participants will understand overall goals for the training.

Process Steps

1. Introduce yourself and share a short bio about yourself and relevant info to your role facilitating
the training.

2. Share the general flow of the training. This maybe longer or provide more context if the group
isn't knowledgeable about what the training is about and/or was required to attend. For
example, “This training is going to take approximately two hours. We are going to be working
through together a number of activities in order to gain a better understand LGBTQ identities
and experiences. These activities are going to be reflective, small group, and sometimes large
group discussions. We'll take a break in the middle of the workshop so you can use the
bathroom, send a quick text, etc.”

3. Tell the group you'll be having them introduce themselves sharing the information you've
written up on the board/flipchart (e.g., “1. Name, 2. Pronouns, 3. Role/Position/Job, 4. One
Thing to Learn Today”").

4. Role model the steps you're asking them to complete. For example, “Hello! My name is Fred,
my pronouns are he/him/his, my role here is that I'm your facilitator, and one thing I want to
learn is how I can best help you connect with LGBTQ identities and experiences.”
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5. Start with a participant on your left or right, and go around the circle allowing everyone a
chance to share.

The process detailed above of how to do introductions is very simple and effective, feel free to get
creative with intros by playing games or asking interesting questions of your participants.

While participants are doing their introductions, draw a map of the seating arrangements in the room,
then write down participants name and pronouns (you can use a symbol/shorthand) on your map.
This will allow you to call on participants by name during the next activity, and learn their names
more quickly in general.

While we ask people to include pronouns in introductions, we do not encourage facilitators to force
anyone to share their pronouns. If a participant doesn’t include their pronouns in their introduction
this maybe an intentional choice, and we suggest you call them by name for the duration of the
training.

Introductions are something that can easily eat up a lot of time in your training. We recommend
spending no more than 10 minutes on introductions in a two or three hour training. If you are doing a
condensed Safe Zone we recommend doing even shorter intros, possibly just asking participants to
share their name and pronouns.



http://www.thesafezoneproject.com



Housekeeping — 101 — Low Trust — 5 Mins — szp.quide/groupnorms

Materials Setup

e Group norms participant sheet e N/A

Facilitator Framing

e This activity allows you to set norms and intention for the space. Some educators do group
generated ground rules or full-value contract, however we have found this facilitation method
to be the most time efficient and effective way to facilitate group norms and set the tone of a
productive learning environment.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

e Participants will understand and express personal investment in the group norms for the
training.

e Participants will connect with why these group norms are important for the dynamic of the
training.

Process Steps

1. Frame the activity. For example, “Before we get any further into the curriculum, we are going
to take a moment to talk about group norms. The page of group norms is not our expectations
of you, but things participants tend to ask for from one another. We'd like to hear from you if
any of these strike a chord.”

2. Read the first group norm “Be smarter than your phone.” Ask participants if this is important
to anyone. Follow up with anyone who says it is important and ask them to share with the
group why it is important to them. After they've shared, move onto the next one on the list
and continue this way until all group norms are covered.

3. Share any additional context that you would like to as a facilitator for why these group norms
are important the type of environment that you want to create in the training.

Wrap-up

If there is anything additional that you as a facilitator want to say specifically for this group you're
working with, this is the best time to do so.
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1. Be Smarter than Your Phone

No matter how good you are at multitasking, we ask you to put away your phone, resist from texting
and all that jazz. We will take a break and you can send a quick text, snap, tweet, insta, etc. at that
point. If you are expecting a phone call you cannot miss we will not judge!

2. Questions, Questions, Questions

Please feel free to ask questions at any time throughout this training. Unless someone is
mid-sentence, it is always an appropriate time to ask questions. Even if it isn't relevant to the topic,
throw it out there - get it off your mind and on to ours.

3. Vegas Rule

Slightly modified! So during the training someone may share something really personal, may ask a
question, may say something that they wouldn't want attached to their name outside this space. So
remember that what is said here stays here and what is learned here leaves here. You're
welcome to share anything that we say in this space with others and attach it to our name but we
respectfully request that you take away the message from others’ shares and not their names.

4. LOL

We really appreciate it if, at some point, y'all could laugh! This training is going to be fun, and we’ll do
our best to keep it upbeat, so just know... it's ok to laugh! Laughter indicates that you're awake, that
you're paying attention, and that we haven't killed your soul. So yeah... go ahead and do that!

5. Share the Airtime

If you are someone who participates often and is really comfortable talking - awesome! Do it. Also we
ask that you try to remain aware of your participation and after you've shared a few times to leave
space for other people to also put their ideas out there. If you usually wait to share... jump in!

6. Reserve the Right to Change Your Mind

If you say something and then later disagree with yourself, that is a-okay! This is a safe space to say
something and then later feel differently and change your mind. We even encourage it. As a wise Safe
Zone participant once said, “Stop, rewind, I changed my mind.”
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First Impressions of LGBTQ People

Reflective — 101 — Low Trust — 10 mins — szp.qguide/firstimpressions

Materials Setup

e Participant sheet e N/A

Facilitator Framing

e This activity helps participants ease into thinking about LGBTQ identity, people, and
experiences from their own perspective.

e The activity can be effective at contextualizing the importance of the workshop or talking
openly about these issues (and how often rare that open conversation can be).

Goals & Learning Outcomes

e Participants will reflect upon their first impressions with LGBTQ people and identity.

e Participants will reflect on how their understanding of LGBTQ people and identity has changed
over their lifetime.

e Participants will have an opportunity to hear how diverse the group’s experience with LGBTQ
people and identity are.

Process Steps

1. Provide directions for the activity and assure participants that this activity primarily reflective
and they won't be asked to share anything they don’t want to. For example, “We are going to
start with a reflective activity called First Impressions. We're going to give you a few minutes to
think on and write some answers to the list of questions on this sheet. These questions are for
your reflection, we aren’t going to collect your sheets or require you to share anything with the
group that you don’t want to. If there is any question you're struggling with skip it and come
back at the end of the activity. We'll give you a few minutes here to answer the questions and
then bring it back to the big group.”

2. Give participants time to reflect (3-5 minutes).
3. Move into the debrief questions.

4. Wrap-up the activity.

Debrief questions
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e What was it like to do that activity?

e Does anyone have something that came up for them while they were answering the questions
that they would like to share?

e Does anyone have an experience that was significantly different that they'd be interested in
sharing?

e What about question 5, would anyone share how their understanding of these issues have
changed over time?

Highlight for participants that each of them have likely have shifted their understanding of LGBTQ
people and identities over the course of their lifetimes and that this workshop may or may not also
shift their understanding of LGBTQ people and identities.

Often there is a mention of language or vocabulary that has shifted over the course of someone’s
exposure to the LGBTQ community and you can call back to this mention in order to create a
seamless transition into vocabulary.

These questions can be modified to focus more specifically on particular identities if you are doing a
targeted training for example, “What was your first impression or initial conversations around LGBTQ
identity within a medical environment?”. They can also be modified in a way to focus on a particular
subpopulation of the LGBTQ community, “What was your first impression of bisexual people?” or,
“What is something that you are still unlearning about transgender identity?”

Be an imperfect role model: this is an activity can be a space where you can share with participants
your own development and journey. This can help assure participants that you identify with their
stories or change and development and that they aren’t alone in having unlearn and reconsider what
they know about gender and sexuality.

While this is a low risk activity, participants sharing about their past (or present) views can expose a
lot of prejudice. While some prejudice being named isn't inherently a bad thing, too much is
unproductive to the learning outcomes. Try to invite shares from participants from a variety of views
and perspectives. Keeping the debrief on the shorter side and moving through the questions quickly
does not negatively impact the goals and will help you manage the feelings that may come up for
folks.

A_—
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First Impressions of LGBTQ People

Answer the following questions to the best of your ability:

1. When's the first time you can remember learning that some people are lesbian, gay, bisexual, or
queer?

2. Where did most of the influence of your initial impressions/understanding of lesbian, gay, bisexual,
and queer people come from? (e.g., family, friends, television, books, news, church)

3. When's the first time you can remember learning that some people are transgender?

4. Where did most of the influence of your initial impressions/understanding of transgender people
come from? (e.g., family, friends, television, books, news, church)

5. How have your impressions/understanding of LGBTQ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and
queer/questioning) people changed or evolved throughout your life?
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Large Group — 101 — Low Trust — 20 mins — szp.quide/corevocab

Materials Setup

Core list participant handout e On aflipchart or whiteboard, draw a star
(or asterisk) with “new word” next to it
and check mark with “check in” next to it

Do's/Don'ts handout

Pens/pencils for participants

Facilitator Framing

The goal of vocabulary isn't to read definitions for every word, but to allow your participants to
highlight the words that they are most interested in and to clarify those words.

The length of clarification, or of additional information you provide on any word (which is not
required), will impact the amount of words that participants are able to/will ask about. Longer
answers = fewer words covered.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

Participants will be able to clarify questions that they have about foundational LGBTQ
vocabulary.

Participants will be on the same page about common terminology that will be used throughout
the rest of the training.

Participants will have a clearer understanding of the importance of language in relation to
creating affirming environments LGBTQ individuals.

Process Steps

1.

14

Frame the activity. For example, “We are going to be diving into vocabulary. Having a common
understanding of these terms is important as many of them are going to be used throughout
the workshop. Also vocabulary is often the subject where folks have the most questions or
misconceptions and we want to make sure to let y'all ask any questions you may have
regarding language.”

Give participants 1 minute to read through terms, specifying that they only read the boldface
terms, not the definitions. Tell them to put a star next to new words, and a checkmark next
to any word they have a question about or want to “check in on.”

Once participants have looked through all the terms, begin with the starred terms on the first
page. Ask participants, “What is a term you have starred on the first page?” When someone
names a term, ask that participant if they would read the definition aloud to the group. After
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reading the definition, check in to make sure the definition is understood. (If you want, you
can open it up for any additional questions.)

4. Add tidbits or examples of your own to help contextualize the definitions. (One of our favorite
is to highlight why the part of speech is important — see Notes section for why.)

5. Start with the next starred term on that page and repeat.

6. Advise participants that on the resource page they will find a link to a longer list of terms for
them to explore on their own.

This handout is a handy reference guide for your participants. These are words and phrases that are
often well-intentioned, but cause harm or aren’t received the way the speaker often means for them
to be. You can simply mention it at the end of the vocab for participants to read later and move on, or
you can spend 5 minutes working through the handout.

If you spend some time working through the handout, we recommend the following steps:

1. Ask your participants to read down the “avoid saying” column. Ask them what questions they
have about those phrases or words.

2. Any questions that come up read the “say instead” and the example. Offer any further
clarification you'd like to add.

3. Repeat down the list.

4. Move into wrap-up.

While you are wrapping up vocabulary, let folks know that terminology is going to continue to come
up throughout the workshop. Participants should feel free to ask/inquire about terms they don't
know/understand that any point.

Role model imperfection! If you struggled with a term or concept, share that with your group.

Participants only receive the “Core Vocab” pages and the “Do’s and Don’ts” handout. The
“Comprehensive list” is simply for you (the facilitator’s) reference.

Vocabulary can go for much longer than 20 minutes. It is important to clarify with your co-facilitator
(or just prepare yourself) how you are going to decide the amount of time that is appropriate for
vocabulary in relation to your training (i.e., are you going to let it go long if there’s a ton of
questions/pressure, or are you cutting it at 20 minutes no matter what?).

15
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If the same person keeps volunteering starred/checked terms, ask other participants to read the
definitions (don't require one person to read all the definitions). Similarly, if someone volunteers a
word, but doesn't feel comfortable reading the definition, ask for another volunteer.

Parts of speech matter. Using the correct part of speech for certain words is crucial. Some words
are not affirming when they are used as nouns (queer, gay, transgender). As a general rule, when in
doubt, adjectives are always safer. They add on an aspect of someone’s identity rather than
reducing them to a single identity. For example, it feels different when you say, “Meg is a blonde,” vs.
“Meg is blonde.”

With identity terminology, no definition is absolute, or applicable to 100% of people who use that
term to describe themselves. We like to say that we embrace the 51/100 rule, meaning that if we can
write a definition for a term that 51 out of 100 people who use that label personally would agree with,
we're nailing it. With this in mind, know that 49/100 people might disagree — slightly, or severely —
with any definition your provide. That's okay! Someone can use a word to mean something different
from the definition here, and you can provide a definition as an “in other cases” context.

These definitions and terms change (sometimes quite rapidly), so don't be alarmed if you haven't seen
a term before or have heard a different definition.

Following are little nuggets of info for some of the terms in the Core List:

asexual:

e Another term used within the asexual community is “ace,” meaning someone who is asexual.
Or “aro” for someone who is aromantic.

e Asexuality is different from celibacy in that it is a sexual orientation whereas celibacy is an
abstaining from a certain action.

e Not all asexual people are aromantic.

biological sex:

e Often seen as a binary, but there are many combinations of chromosomes, hormones, and
primary/secondary sex characteristics that one might embody, so it's often more accurate and
helpful to view this as a spectrum.

e Is commonly conflated with gender.
biphobia:

e Example of bi-invisibility and bi-erasure would be the assumption that any manin a
relationship with a woman is straight or anyone dating someone of the same gender means
they are gay. In neither case do we assume anyone could be bisexual.

-—
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e Important to recognize that many of our “stereotypes” of bisexual people - they're overly
sexual, greedy, it's just a phase - have harmful and stigmatizing effects (and that it is not only
straight people but also many queer individuals harbor these beliefs too).

bisexual:
e Can simply be shortened to “bi.”
e Many people who recognize the limitations of a binary understanding of gender may still use

the word bisexual as their sexual orientation label (even if their attractions aren’t limited to
“men and women") instead of pansexual. This is often because more people are familiar with
the term “bisexual,” whereas for a lot of people “pansexual” is new or unknown.

cisgender:

“Cis" is a latin prefix that means “on the same side [as]” or "on this side [of].”

coming out:

8ay.

A popular misconception is this happens once. Coming out is, however, a continuous, lifelong
process. Everyday, all the time, one has to evaluate and reevaluate who they are comfortable
coming out to, if it is safe, and what the consequences might be.

“Gay” is a word that's had many different meanings throughout time. In the 12th century is
meant “happy,” in the 17th century it was more commonly used to mean “immoral”
(describing a loose and pleasure-seeking person), and by the 19th it meant a female prostitute
(and a “gay man” was a guy who had sex with female prostitutes a lot). It wasn’t until the 20th
century that it started to mean what it means today. Interesting, right?

genderqueer:

The “queer” aspect of “genderqueer” is the reclaimed, affirmative, empowering usage of
“queer.” This is not a slur or derogatory term.

As an umbrella term, “genderqueer” shows up in a lot of different ways, many of which have
their own label. For example, genderqueer might be (2.a) combined aspects of man and
woman and other identities (bigender, pangender); (2.b) not having a gender or identifying
with a gender (genderless, agender); (2.c) moving between genders (genderfluid); (2.d) third
gender or other-gendered

homophobia:

17

The term can be extended to bisexual and transgender people as well; however, the terms
biphobia and transphobia are used to emphasize the specific biases against individuals of
bisexual and transgender communities.

May be experienced inwardly by someone who identifies as queer (internalized homophobia).
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homosexual:

Until 1973 “Homosexuality” was classified as a mental disorder in the DSM Diagnostic and
Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders. This is just one of the reasons that there are such
heavy negative and clinical connotations with this term.

There are different connotations to the word homosexual than there are to gay/lesbian
individuals for both straight and queer people. There was a study done prior to the repeal of
Don't Ask, Don’t Tell about peoples’ feelings towards open queer service members. When
asked, “How do you feel about open gay and lesbian service members,” there was about 65%
support (at the time).” When the question was changed to, “How do you feel about open
homosexual service members,” the same demographic of people being asked support drops
~200%.

intersex:

Often seen as a problematic condition when babies or young children are identified as
intersex, it was for a long term considered an “emergency” and something that doctors moved
to “fix” right away in a newborn child. There has been increasing advocacy and awareness
brought to this issue and many individuals advocate that intersex individuals should be
allowed to remain intersex past infancy and to not treat the condition as an issue or medical
emergency.

leshian:

The term lesbian is derived from the name of the Greek island of Lesbos and as such is
sometimes considered a Eurocentric category that does not necessarily represent the
identities of Black women and other non-European ethnic groups.

While many women use the term lesbian, many women also will describe themselves as gay,
this is a personal choice. Many prefer the term gay because it is most often used as an
adjective.

LGBTQ; GSM; DSG:

There is no “correct” initialism or acronym — what is preferred varies by person, region, and
often evolves over time.

The efforts to represent more and more identities led to some folks describe the
ever-lengthening initialism as “Alphabet Soup,” which was part of the impetus for GSM and
DSG.

passing:

18

Passing is a controversial term because it often is focusing on the person who is observing or
interacting with the individual who is “passing” and puts the power/authority in observer
rather than giving agency to the individual.
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e Some people are looking to “pass” or perhaps more accurately be accepted for the identity
that they feel most aligns with who they are. However, “passing” is not always a positive
experience.

e Some individuals experience feeling of being invisible to or a loss of their own community
when they are perceived to be part of the dominant group.

e The term “passing” comes from conversations about race (a person of color “passing” as white)

queer:

e If a person tells you they are not comfortable with you referring to them as queer, don't.
Always respect individual's preferences when it comes to identity labels, particularly ones with
troubled histories like this.

e People often wonder, “Is queer an ingroup term? Can straight people use it?” Our
recommendation is that folks of any identity can use the word queer as long as they are
comfortable explaining to others what it means, and why they use it. Because some people
feel uncomfortable with the word, it is best to be comfortable explaining your usage.

transgender:

e Trans with an asterisk (“trans*) is often used in written forms (not spoken) to indicate that you
are referring to the larger group nature of the term, and specifically including non-binary
identities, as well as transgender men (transmen) and transgender women (transwomen).

e Trans people can be straight, gay, bisexual, queer, or any other sexual orientation. Remember:
this is a gender label, not a sexuality label.

e Because sexuality labels (e.g., gay, straight, bi) are generally based on the relationship between
the person's gender and the genders they are attracted to, trans* sexuality can be defined in a
couple of ways. Some people may choose to identify as straight, gay, bi, lesbian, or pansexual
(or other labels — using their gender identity as the basis). Some people describe their
sexuality using other-focused terms like gynesexual, androsexual, or skoliosexual (see full list
for definitions for these terms.)
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ally /“al-lie"/ - noun: a (typically straight and/or cisgender) person who supports and respects
members of the LGBTQ community. We consider people to be active allies who take action on in
support and respect.

asexual - adj. : experiencing little or no sexual attraction to others and/or a lack of interest in sexual
relationships/behavior. Asexuality exists on a continuum from people who experience no sexual
attraction or have any desire for sex, to those who experience low levels, or sexual attraction only
under specific conditions. Many of these different places on the continuum have their own identity
labels (see demisexual). Sometimes abbreviated to “ace.”

biological sex - noun : a medical term used to refer to the chromosomal, hormonal and anatomical
characteristics that are used to classify an individual as female or male or intersex. Often referred to
as simply “sex,” “physical sex,” “anatomical sex,” or specifically as “sex assigned at birth.”

biphobia - noun: a range of negative attitudes (e.g., fear, anger, intolerance, invisibility, resentment,
erasure, or discomfort) that one may have or express toward bisexual individuals. Biphobia can come
from and be seen within the LGBTQ community as well as straight society. biphobic - adj. : a word
used to describe actions, behaviors, or individuals who demonstrate elements of this range of
negative attitudes toward bisexual people.

bisexual - 1 noun & adj. : a person who experiences attraction to some men and women. 2 adj. : a
person who experiences attraction to some people of their gender and another gender. Bisexual
attraction does not have to be equally split, or indicate a level of interest that is the same across the
genders an individual may be attracted to. Often used interchangeably with “pansexual”.

cisgender /“siss-jendur”/ - adj. : a gender description for when someone’s sex assigned at birth and
gender identity correspond in the expected way (e.g., someone who was assigned male at birth, and
identifies as a man). A simple way to think about it is if a person is not transgender, they are
cisgender. The word cisgender can also be shortened to “cis.”

coming out - 1 noun: the process by which one accepts and/or comes to identify one’s own sexuality
or gender identity (to “come out” to oneself). 2 verb : the process by which one shares one’s sexuality
or gender identity with others.

gay - 1 adj. : experiencing attraction solely (or primarily) to some members of the same gender. Can
be used to refer to men who are attracted to other men and women who are attracted to women. 2
adj. : an umbrella term used to refer to the queer community as a whole, or as an individual identity
label for anyone who is not straight.

gender expression - noun : the external display of one’s gender, through a combination of clothing,
grooming, demeanor, social behavior, and other factors, generally made sense of on scales of
masculinity and femininity. Also referred to as “gender presentation.”
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gender identity - noun : the internal perception of an one’s gender, and how they label themselves,
based on how much they align or don’t align with what they understand their options for gender to
be. Often conflated with biological sex, or sex assigned at birth.

genderqueer - 1 adj. : a gender identity label often used by people who do not identify with the
binary of man/woman. 2 adj. : an umbrella term for many gender non-conforming or non-binary
identities (e.g., agender, bigender, genderfluid).

heteronormativity - noun: the assumption, in individuals and/or in institutions, that everyone is
heterosexual and that heterosexuality is superior to all other sexualities. Leads to invisibility and
stigmatizing of other sexualities: when learning a woman is married, asking her what her husband’s
name is. Heteronormativity also leads us to assume that only masculine men and feminine women
are straight.

homophobia - noun: an umbrella term for a range of negative attitudes (e.g., fear, anger,
intolerance, resentment, erasure, or discomfort) that one may have toward LGBTQ people. The term
can also connote a fear, disgust, or dislike of being perceived as LGBTQ. homophobic - adj. : a word
used to describe actions, behaviors, or individuals who demonstrate elements of this range of
negative attitudes toward LGBTQ people.

homosexual - adj. & noun: a person primarily emotionally, physically, and/or sexually attracted to
members of the same sex/gender. This [medical] term is considered stigmatizing (particularly as a
noun) due to its history as a category of mental illness, and is discouraged for common use (use gay
or lesbian instead).

intersex - adj. : term for a combination of chromosomes, gonads, hormones, internal sex organs,
and genitals that differs from the two expected patterns of male or female. Formerly known as
hermaphrodite (or hermaphroditic), but these terms are now outdated and derogatory.

lesbian - noun & adj. : women who are primarily attracted romantically, erotically, and/or
emotionally to other women.

LGBTQ; GSM; DSG - abbr. : shorthand or umbrella terms for all folks who have a non-normative (or
queer) gender or sexuality, there are many different initialisms people prefer. LGBTQ is Lesbian Gay
Bisexual Transgender and Queer and/or Questioning (sometimes people at a + at the end in an effort
to be more inclusive); GSM is Gender and Sexual Minorities; DSG is Diverse Sexualities and Genders.
Other options include the initialism GLBT or LGBT and the acronym QUILTBAG (Queer [or
Questioning] Undecided Intersex Lesbian Trans* Bisexual Asexual [or Allied] and Gay [or
Genderqueer]).

pansexual - adj. : a person who experiences sexual, romantic, physical, and/or spiritual attraction for
members of all gender identities/expressions. Often shortened to “pan.”

passing - 1 adj. & verb : trans* people being accepted as, or able to “pass for,” a member of their
self-identified gender identity (regardless of sex assigned at birth) without being identified as trans*. 2
adj. : an LGB/queer individual who is believed to be or perceived as straight.
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queer - 1 adj. : an umbrella term to describe individuals who don’t identify as straight and/or
cisgender. 2 noun: a slur used to refer to someone who isn't straight and/or cisgender. Due to its
historical use as a derogatory term, and how it is still used as a slur many communities, it is not
embraced or used by all LGBTQ people. The term “queer” can often be use interchangeably with
LGBTQ (e.g., “queer people” instead of “LGBTQ people”).

questioning - verb, adj. : an individual who or time when someone is unsure about or exploring their
own sexual orientation or gender identity.

romantic attraction - noun: a capacity that evokes the want to engage in romantically intimate
behavior (e.g., dating, relationships, marriage), experienced in varying degrees (from little-to-none, to
intense). Often conflated with sexual attraction, emotional attraction, and/or spiritual attraction.

sexual attraction - noun: a capacity that evokes the want to engage in sexually intimate behavior
(e.g., kissing, touching, intercourse), experienced in varying degrees (from little-to-none, to intense).
Often conflated with romantic attraction, emotional attraction, and/or spiritual attraction.

sexual orientation - noun : the type of sexual, romantic, emotional/spiritual attraction one has the
capacity to feel for some others, generally labeled based on the gender relationship between the
person and the people they are attracted to. Often confused with sexual preference.

straight - adj. : a person primarily emotionally, physically, and/or sexually attracted to some people
who are not their same sex/gender. A more colloquial term for the word heterosexual.

transgender - 1 adj. : a gender description for someone who has transitioned (or is transitioning)
from living as one gender to another. 2 adj. : an umbrella term for anyone whose sex assigned at
birth and gender identity do not correspond in the expected way (e.g., someone who was assigned
male at birth, but does not identify as a man).

transphobia - noun : the fear of, discrimination against, or hatred of trans* people, the trans*
community, or gender ambiguity. Transphobia can be seen within the queer community, as well as in
general society. Transphobic - adj. : a word used to describe an individual who harbors some
elements of this range of negative attitudes, thoughts, intents, towards trans* people.
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* This list is neither comprehensive nor inviolable, but a continual work in progress. With identity
terms, trust the person who is using the term and their definition of it above any dictionary.

advocate - 1 noun: a person who actively works to end intolerance, educate others, and support
social equity for a marginalized group. 2 verb: to actively support or plea in favor of a particular
cause, the action of working to end intolerance or educate others.

agender - adj. : a person with no (or very little) connection to the traditional system of gender, no
personal alignment with the concepts of either man or woman, and/or someone who sees themselves
as existing without gender. Sometimes called gender neutrois, gender neutral, or genderless.

ally /“al-lie"/ - noun: a (typically straight and/or cisgender) person who supports and respects
members of the LGBTQ community. We consider people to be active allies who take action on in
support and respect.

androgyny /“an-jrah-jun-ee”/ (androgynous) - 1 noun. : a gender expression that has elements of
both masculinity and femininity; 2 adj. : occasionally used in place of “intersex” to describe a person
with both female and male anatomy, generally in the form “androgyne."

androsexual / androphilic - adj. : being primarily sexually, romantically and/or emotionally attracted
to men, males, and/or masculinity.

aromantic /"ay-ro-man-tic"/ - adj. : experiencing little or no romantic attraction to others and/or has
a lack of interest in romantic relationships/behavior. Aromanticism exists on a continuum from
people who experience no romantic attraction or have any desire for romantic activities, to those who
experience low levels, or romantic attraction only under specific conditions. Many of these different
places on the continuum have their own identity labels (see demiromantic). Sometimes abbreviated
to “aro” (pronounced like “arrow”).

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

bicurious - adj. : a curiosity toward experiencing attraction to people of the same gender/sex (similar
to questioning).

bigender - adj. : a person who fluctuates between traditionally “woman” and “man” gender-based
behavior and identities, identifying with both genders (or sometimes identifying with either man or
woman, as well as a third, different gender).

binder - noun: an undergarment used to alter or reduce the appearance of one’s breasts (worn
similarly to how one wears a sports bra). binding - adj. : the (sometimes daily) process of wearing a
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binder. Binding is often used to change the way other’s read/perceive one’s anatomical sex
characteristics, and/or as a form of gender expression.

biological sex - noun : a medical term used to refer to the chromosomal, hormonal and anatomical
characteristics that are used to classify an individual as female or male or intersex. Often referred to
as simply “sex,” “physical sex,” “anatomical sex,” or specifically as “sex assigned at birth.”

n u

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

butch - noun & adj. : a person who identifies themselves as masculine, whether it be physically,
mentally, or emotionally. ‘Butch’ is sometimes used as a derogatory term for lesbians, but is also be
claimed as an affirmative identity label.

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

cisnormativity - noun : the assumption, in individuals and in institutions, that everyone is cisgender,
and that cisgender identities are superior to trans* identities and people. Leads to invisibility of
non-cisgender identities.

cissexism - noun : behavior that grants preferential treatment to cisgender people, reinforces the
idea that being cisgender is somehow better or more “right” than being transgender, and/or makes
other genders invisible.

closeted - adj. : an individual who is not open to themselves or others about their (queer) sexuality or
gender identity. This may be by choice and/or for other reasons such as fear for one’s safety, peer or
family rejection, or disapproval and/or loss of housing, job, etc. Also known as being “in the closet.”
When someone chooses to break this silence they “come out” of the closet. (See coming out)

coming out - 1 noun: the process by which one accepts and/or comes to identify one’s own sexuality
or gender identity (to “come out” to oneself). 2 verb : the process by which one shares one’s sexuality
or gender identity with others.

constellation - noun: a way to describe the arrangement or structure of a polyamorous relationship.
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cross-dresser - noun: someone who wears clothes of another gender/sex.

demiromantic - adj. : little or no capacity to experience romantic attraction until a strong sexual
connection is formed with someone, often within a sexual relationship.

demisexual - adj. : little or no capacity to experience sexual attraction until a strong romantic
connection is formed with someone, often within a romantic relationship.

down low - adj. : typically referring to men who identify as straight but who secretly have sex with
men. Down low (or DL) originated in, and is most commonly used by, communities of color.

drag king - noun : someone who performs (hyper-) masculinity theatrically.
drag queen - noun: someone who performs (hyper-) femininity theatrically.

dyke - noun: referring to a masculine presenting lesbian. While often used derogatorily, it is also
reclaimed affirmatively by some lesbians and gay women as a positive self identity term.

emotional attraction - noun: a capacity that evokes the want to engage in emotionally intimate
behavior (e.g., sharing, confiding, trusting, inter-depending), experienced in varying degrees (from
little-to-none to intense). Often conflated with sexual attraction, romantic attraction, and/or spiritual
attraction.

fag(got) - noun: derogatory term referring to a gay person, or someone perceived as queer. While
often used derogatorily, it is also used reclaimed by some gay people (often gay men) as a positive
in-group term.

feminine-of-center; masculine-of-center - adj. : a phrase that indicates a range in terms of gender
identity and expression for people who present, understand themselves, and/or relate to others in a
generally more feminine/masculine way, but don't necessarily identify as women or men.
Feminine-of-center individuals may also identify as “femme,” “submissive,” “transfeminine,” etc.;
masculine-of-center individuals may also often identify as “butch,” “stud,” “aggressive,” “boi,”
“transmasculine,” etc.

"

feminine-presenting; masculine-presenting - adj. : a way to describe someone who expresses
gender in a more feminine/masculine way. Often confused with
feminine-of-center/masculine-of-center, which generally include a focus on identity as well as
expression.

femme - noun & adj. : someone who identifies themselves as feminine, whether it be physically,
mentally or emotionally. Often used to refer to a feminine-presenting queer woman or people.

fluid(ity) - adj. : generally with another term attached, like gender-fluid or fluid-sexuality, fluid(ity)
describes an identity that may change or shift over time between or within the mix of the options
available (e.g., man and woman, bi and straight).
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FtM /7 F2M; MtF / M2F - abbr. : female-to-male transgender or transsexual person; male-to-female
transgender or transsexual person.

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

gender binary - noun: the idea that there are only two genders and that every person is one of
those two.

gender expression - noun : the external display of one’s gender, through a combination of clothing,
grooming, demeanor, social behavior, and other factors, generally made sense of on scales of
masculinity and femininity. Also referred to as “gender presentation.”

gender fluid - adj. : a gender identity best described as a dynamic mix of boy and girl. A person who
is gender fluid may always feel like a mix of the two traditional genders, but may feel more man some
days, and more woman other days.

gender identity - noun: the internal perception of an one’s gender, and how they label themselves,
based on how much they align or don’t align with what they understand their options for gender to
be. Often conflated with biological sex, or sex assigned at birth.

gender neutrois - adj. : see agender.

gender non-conforming - 1 adj. : a gender expression descriptor that indicates a non-traditional
gender presentation (masculine woman or feminine man). 2 adj. : a gender identity label that
indicates a person who identifies outside of the gender binary. Often abbreviated as “GNC.”

gender normative / gender straight - adj. : someone whose gender presentation, whether by
nature or by choice, aligns with society’s gender-based expectations.

genderqueer - 1 adj. : a gender identity label often used by people who do not identify with the
binary of man/woman. 2 adj. : an umbrella term for many gender non-conforming or non-binary
identities (e.g., agender, bigender, genderfluid).

gender variant - adj. : someone who either by nature or by choice does not conform to
gender-based expectations of society (e.g. transgender, transsexual, intersex, genderqueer,
cross-dresser, etc).

gynesexual / gynephilic /“guy-nuh-seks-shu-uhl”/ - adj. : being primarily sexually, romantically
and/or emotionally attracted to woman, females, and/or femininity.

hermaphrodite - noun: an outdated medical term previously used to refer to someone who was
born with some combination of typically-male and typically-female sex characteristics. It's considered
stigmatizing and inaccurate. See intersex.
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

heterosexism - noun: behavior that grants preferential treatment to heterosexual people, reinforces
the idea that heterosexuality is somehow better or more “right” than queerness, and/or makes other
sexualities invisible.

heterosexual/straight - adj. : experiencing attraction solely (or primarily) to some members of a
different gender.

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

lipstick lesbian - noun: Usually refers to a lesbian with a feminine gender expression. Can be used
in a positive or a derogatory way. Is sometimes also used to refer to a lesbian who is assumed to be
(or passes for) straight.

metrosexual - adj. : a man with a strong aesthetic sense who spends more time, energy, or money
on his appearance and grooming than is considered gender normative.
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MSM / WSW - abbr. : men who have sex with men or women who have sex with women, to
distinguish sexual behaviors from sexual identities: because a man is straight, it doesn’t mean he’s not
having sex with men. Often used in the field of HIV/Aids education, prevention, and treatment.

Mx. / “mix” or “schwa” / - noun: an honorific (e.g. Mr., Ms., Mrs., etc.) that is gender neutral. Itis
often the option of choice for folks who do not identify within the gender binary: Mx. Smith is a great
teacher.

outing - verb : involuntary or unwanted disclosure of another person’s sexual orientation, gender
identity, or intersex status.

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

PGPs - abbr. : preferred gender pronouns. Often used during introductions, becoming more common
as a standard practice. Many suggest removing the “preferred,” because it indicates flexibility and/or
the power for the speaker to decide which pronouns to use for someone else.

polyamory (polyamorous) - noun : refers to the practice of, desire for, or orientation toward having
ethical, honest, and consensual non-monogamous relationships (i.e. relationships that may include
multiple partners). Often shortened to “poly.”

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

QPOC / QTPOC - abbr. : initialisms that stand for queer people of color and queer and/or trans
people of color.

romantic attraction - noun: a capacity that evokes the want to engage in romantic intimate
behavior (e.g., dating, relationships, marriage), experienced in varying degrees (from little-to-none, to
intense). Often conflated with sexual attraction, emotional attraction, and/or spiritual attraction.

same gender loving (SGL) - adj. : sometimes used by some members of the African-American or
Black community to express an non-straight sexual orientation without relying on terms and symbols
of European descent.
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sex assigned at birth (SAAB) - abbr. : a phrase used to intentionally recognize a person’s assigned
sex (not gender identity). Sometimes called “designated sex at birth” (DSAB) or “sex coercively
assigned at birth” (SCAB), or specifically used as “assigned male at birth” (AMAB) or “assigned female
at birth” (AFAB): Jenny was assigned male at birth, but identifies as a woman.

sexual attraction - noun: a capacity that evokes the want to engage in physically intimate behavior
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

sexual preference - noun: the types of sexual intercourse, stimulation, and gratification one likes to
receive and participate in. Generally when this term is used, it is being mistakenly interchanged with
“sexual orientation,” creating an illusion that one has a choice (or “preference”) in who they are
attracted to.

sex reassignment surgery (SRS) - noun: used by some medical professionals to refer to a group of
surgical options that alter a person’s biological sex. “Gender confirmation surgery” is considered by
many to be a more affirming term. In most cases, one or multiple surgeries are required to achieve
legal recognition of gender variance. Some refer to different surgical procedures as “top” surgery and
“bottom” surgery to discuss what type of surgery they are having without having to be more explicit.

skoliosexual - adj. : being primarily sexually, romantically and/or emotionally attracted to some
genderqueer, transgender, transsexual, and/or non-binary people.

spiritual attraction - noun: a capacity that evokes the want to engage in intimate behavior based on
one’s experience with, interpretation of, or belief in the supernatural (e.g., religious teachings,
messages from a deity), experienced in varying degrees (from little-to-none, to intense). Often
conflated with sexual attraction, romantic attraction, and/or emotional attraction.

stealth - adj. : a trans person who is not “out” as trans, and is perceived/known by others as
cisgender.

straight - adj. : a person primarily emotionally, physically, and/or sexually attracted to some people
who are not their same sex/gender. A more colloquial term for the word heterosexual.

stud - noun : most commonly used to indicate a Black/African-American and/or Latina masculine
lesbian/queer woman. Also known as ‘butch’ or ‘aggressive’.

third gender - noun: for a person who does not identify with either man or woman, but identifies
with another gender. This gender category is used by societies that recognise three or more genders,
both contemporary and historic, and is also a conceptual term meaning different things to different
people who use it, as a way to move beyond the gender binary.
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top surgery - noun: this term refers to surgery for the construction of a male-type chest or breast
augmentation for a female-type chest.

trans* - adj. : an umbrella term covering a range of identities that transgress socially-defined gender
norms. Trans with an asterisk is often used in written forms (not spoken) to indicate that you are
referring to the larger group nature of the term, and specifically including non-binary identities, as
well as transgender men (transmen) and transgender women (transwomen).

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

transition / transitioning - noun, verb : referring to the process of a transgender person changing
aspects of themself (e.g., their appearance, name, pronouns, or making physical changes to their
body) to be more congruent with the gender they know themself to be (as opposed to the gender they
lived as pre-transitioning).

transman; transwoman - noun : An identity label sometimes adopted by female-to-male
transgender people or transsexuals to signify that they are men while still affirming their history as
assigned female sex at birth. (sometimes referred to as transguy) 2 Identity label sometimes adopted
by male-to-female transsexuals or transgender people to signify that they are women while still
affirming their history as assigned male sex at birth.

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

transsexual - noun and adj. a person who identifies psychologically as a gender/sex other than the
one to which they were assigned at birth. Transsexuals often wish to transform their bodies
hormonally and surgically to match their inner sense of gender/sex.

transvestite - noun: a person who dresses as the binary opposite gender expression
(“cross-dresses”) for any one of many reasons, including relaxation, fun, and sexual gratification (often
called a “cross-dresser,” and should not be confused with transsexual).

two-spirit - noun : is an umbrella term traditionally within Native American communities to
recognize individuals who possess qualities or fulfill roles of both genders.

ze / zir / "zee”, “zerr” or “zeer"/ - alternate pronouns that are gender neutral and preferred by some
trans* people. They replace “he” and “she” and “his” and “hers” respectively. Alternatively some
people who are not comfortable/do not embrace he/she use the plural pronoun “they/their” as a
gender neutral singular pronoun.
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AVOID SAIING...

Hermaphrodite is a stigmatizing, "What are the best practices for

"Hermaphrodite" "Intersex” inaccurate word with a negative the medical care of intersex
medical history. infants?"
"Homosexual" often connotes a "We want to do a better job of
"Homosexual" "Gay" medical diagnosis, or a discomfort being inclusive of our gay
with gay/lesbian people. employees.”

"Assigned" language accurately

EBMIEWELS @ depicts the situation of what

B el happens at birth
o "Max was assigned female at
ASSIEET . - birth, then he transitioned in
female/male at birth" "-bodied" language is often " high school”
"Female-bodied" or interpreted as as pressure to 'gh school.
"Male-bodied" medically transition, or invalidation
of one's gender identity
"A gay" or "a 'A gay/transgender  Gay and transgender are adjectives "We had a transgender athlete
transgender” person" that describe a person/group in our league this year. "
Transqenderipeople’ TTransqenderpeople Sa)'/mg' normal |m.p‘I|es abnormal, This group is open to both
" . . which is a stigmatizing way to refer ~ transgender and cisgender
and normal people" and cisgender people "
to a person. people.

"Both" implies there are only two;  "Video games aren't just a boy
"All genders" "Opposite" reinforces antagonism  thing -- kids of all genders play
amongst genders them."

"Both genders" or
"Opposite sexes"

Moving away from binary language is ,

“Ladies and "Everyone,' "Folks," . ) Good morning everyone, next
" " " more inclusive of people of all . .
gentlemen Honored guests," etc stop Picadilly Station.
genders
iy p W y "Mail clerk,' "
Mailman,” “fireman, "Firefighter," "Police  People of all genders do these jobs | actually saw a firefighter

"policeman," etc. rescue a cat from a tree."

officer" etc.
"It" when referring to
someone (e.g., when They" "It" is for referring to things, not "You know, | am not sure how
pronouns are y people. they identify."
unknown)
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LGBTQ Umbrella

Lecture — 101 — Low Trust — 2 mins — szp.qguide/umbrella

Materials Setup

e Facilitator guide and participant handouts e N/A

Facilitator Framing

e This is the most lecture-heavy part of Safe Zone curriculum. If you are going to use the sample
lectures give it a read a few times before doing it so that you can know the flow and general
sense of it before facilitating.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

e Participants will be able to understand that there is a difference between gender and sexuality.

e Participants will be able to identify the difference between the L, G, B, Q, and the T of LGBTQ.

Process Steps

1. Frame the activity. For example, “We are going to move now from talking about vocab to
talking about some frameworks and ways to make sense of a lot of that vocabulary. First we
are going to start with the LGBTQ umbrella handout. This handout helps us make some sense
of the LGBTQ acronym.”

2. Quickly explain the letters, the idea of the queer umbrella, and the distinction between
sexualities and genders. You can do this by reading the handout aloud, or using the example
lecture below.

3. Wrap-up the activity.

LGBTQ Umbrella Example Lecture

If you could all turn to the page with the umbrella image on it, we want to explain what the LGBTQ
letters represent, how they refer to different identities, and why we often use the phrase “umbrella
term.” When we discuss “LGBTQ" people, one thing we generally forget to make clear what, exactly,
those letters mean. For example, there is no such thing as an “LGBTQ" person. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender, and Queer are all different labels, representing different identities. Importantly, they are
words that relate to folks' experiences of gender and sexual identities -- two things we often confuse
for being one and the same.

LGB all represent sexual identities. And the T represents a gender identity. And the Q — sometimes
referring to “Questioning,” but generally meaning “Queer” — is often used as an umbrella term, in an
affirming and positive way, to lump all marginalized sexualities and genders together.
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We'd like to draw your attention to the umbrella handle itself, because while these identities are all
often grouped together, we're talking about distinctly different aspects of our humanity and
experience: sexuality and gender.

When we say sexual identities, sexualities, or sexual orientations, we are talking about are the ways
we categorize and define who we are attracted to. When we “gender identities” we are talking about
the ways we categorize and define our genders.

So, to recap: on one side we have queer sexualities (Lesbian, Gay, and Bisexual, to name a few), and
on the other we have queer genders (Transgender, to name one), and we often group all of these
under the umbrella term of “queer.”
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LGBTQ Umbrella Handout

LGBTQ 1s an acronym

meant to encompass a whole bunch of diverse sexualities and genders.
Folks often refer to the Q (standing for “queer”*) as an umbrella term, under
which live a whole bunch of identities. This is helpful because lesbian, gay,
and bisexual aren't the only marginalized sexualities, and transgender*
isn't the only gender identity. In fact, there are many more of both!

LGB T

Sexualities @ Genders

* The “"Q" sometimes stands for “questioning” and “transgender” is often thought of as an
umbrella term itself (sometimes abbreviated “trans”; or "trans*" in writing). Lots of aster-
isks, lots of exceptions, because hey — we're talking about lots of different folks with differ-
ent lived experiences to be inclusive of.
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Genderbread Person

Lecture + Guided Discussion — 101 — Low Trust — 13 mins -
szp.quide/genderbread

Materials Setup

e Whiteboard or easel/paper and markers e (suggested)Draw the Genderbread
Person on the whiteboard or flipchart
paper and have the continuums with the
e Pens/pencils blanks drawn as well.

e Facilitator guide and participant handouts

Facilitator Framing

e This is the most lecture-heavy part of Safe Zone curriculum. If you are going to use the sample
lecture give it a read a few times before doing it so that you can know the flow and general
sense of it before facilitating.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

e Participants will be able to understand that there is a difference between gender and sexuality.

e Participants will be able to describe the difference between biological sex, gender identity,
gender expression, and attraction.

e Participants will know at least one reason it is helpful and important to recognize these
different components within gender.

Process Steps

1. Frame the activity. For example, “When we talk about ‘LGBTQ’ we're talking about a lot of
sexualities and genders. For the next few minutes, we're going to focus in on gender itself. This
graphic is called the Genderbread Person, and will help us better understand what we mean
when we say ‘gender,” and all the different ways it shows up in our lives.”

2. Work through the genderbread person, first filling in the blanks and defining terms, then
making the different components of gender salient — either by having participants reflect for
themselves (see our example lecture), or by working through hypothetical examples.

3. Open up the space for questions about the models.
4. Wrap-up the activity.
Genderbread Person Example Lecture + Guided Discussion

Moving into the next handout, the genderbread person is a diagram that helps us understand
gender and sexuality, and the parts that make up both. This model is meant to accurately depict the
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complexity of how these concepts show up in our society; it is not a depiction of what dream society
could be. We're going to start with the top half of the sheet, so we encourage you to fold the paper
in half.

To begin, let’s fill in the blanks and name the different parts of the genderbread person.

On the first line, pointing to the brain, we can write “Identity.” Gender identity is who we, in our
heads, know ourselves to be, based on what we understand to be the options for gender, and how
much we align (or don't align) with one of those options. Gender identity is our psychological sense of
gender.

On the line below that, pointing to the heart, we can write “Attraction.” Attraction is the different ways
we feel pulled to other people, often categorized based on our gender and the gender of those we
feel drawn to. This categorization is referred to as sexual orientation.

On the bottom line on the right, we'll write “Sex.” Sex, here referring to anatomical sex, refers to the
physical makeup of our bodies, and specifically all the body parts we've named as sex characteristics
-- both the primary traits we're born with, and the secondary that we might develop later in life.

On the left we have a line pointing to the entire diagram. On this line we can write “Expression.”
Gender expression is all the different ways we present ourselves through our actions, our clothing,
and our demeanor, and the gendered ways those presentations are socially interpreted.

Does anyone have any questions about those terms, or their definitions?
Let’s now unfold our paper and move on to the bottom half.

Here you'll see some scales and blank spaces. These are not fancy arrows. You can think of each of
these as one-way continuums, or scales, depicting how the different components above may show up
for us. For some people, it's helpful to imagine a 0% on the left, and a 100% on the right.

Again, we're going to start by filling in the blanks.

With gender identity, people often think of social roles, gender norms, and personality traits, and the
expectations baked into these things. In the top blank, we can write “Woman” and in the bottom
blank we can write “Man”, and we're going to add a “-ness” to both of these, because these lines
indicate all the varying degrees of potential “Woman-ness” and/or “Man-ness” with which someone
might identify.

With gender expression, people often think of hair styles, grooming, make-up, clothing, nonverbal
mannerisms, and other things we see on the outside. We'll write “Femininity” in the top line and
“Masculinity” in the bottom line, as these are the two words that people generally use to describe the
different ways our expressions show up.

And with anatomical sex, the first things that people think of are genitals and reproductive organs, but
lots of things make up what we call sex, including body hair, hip to shoulder ratio, chromosomes,
pitch of voice, and more. On the top line, we'll write “Female-ness,” and on the bottom line we'll write
“Male-ness,” because here we are depicting the varying degrees someone might embody these traits,

-—
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as opposed to the sex a person is assigned at birth (which is generally solely determined by external
genitalia at birth).

Does anyone have any questions about these scales, or the words we're using to label them?

Now we’re going to fill in the blanks in the attraction section. People experience attraction (or
don't) in a lot of different ways. Two common ways people describe the attraction they may or may
not be experiencing is as “sexual” and “romantic.” You can think of sexual attraction as the drive to
engage in physically intimate behaviors like touching, kissing, or intercourse, and romantic attraction
as the drive to engage in socially intimate behaviors like flirting, dating, and marriage.

Some people experience both, some only one, and some neither. And within those experiences of
attraction, we often focus on the gender of others that we are attracted to.

In the top blanks on the write, you can write “Women” and in the bottom we can write “Men.” But we
can also write all the words from above. That is, in the top line we might write “woman-ness,
femininity, and/or female-ness,” and in the bottom line “man-ness, masculinity, and/or male-ness,”
because our sexual or romantic attraction might be to a particular part of gender. For example,
someone might be attracted to people who identify with a lot of woman-ness, but express a lot of
masculinity.

Does anyone have any questions about these scales, or the words we're using to label them?

What we'd like to do now is take a moment to consider where we land on these scales. How
much woman-ness do you identify with? How much man-ness? Maybe neither? How much femininity
and/or masculinity do you express? A lot of both? A lot of one and not a lot of the other? How much
female-ness or male-ness do you see yourself embodying? You can draw a dot on each continuum,
several dots to indicate a range, or leave it blank -- be as creative as you'd like.

We won’t be collecting these, or asking you to share your answers. We're going to give you 2
minutes.

We are socialized to oversimplify all of this, and to think that once we know one thing about someone,
we can fill in the rest of their blanks. For example, if we learn someone is a woman, we have a picture
in our mind of what that person looks like and who she’s attracted to. We might assume she
expresses gender in feminine ways, was assigned female at birth and embodies female-ness, and is
exclusively attracted to men. This image is simple, however, is not true or complicated enough for
many, if not most, of us. Many of us exist in different degrees on the scales above, and may zig-zag
through them in ways that break assumptions and norms.

To highlight this, we want to use the blank space between the gender and sexuality scales to write two
things: “Identity # Expression # Sex,” and “Gender # Sexual Orientation.”

As we said at the beginning, the Genderbread is a model that shows us how complex gender and
sexuality are in our current society, not the ideal world we would want to live in. Our hope is that
understanding might lead to a healthier world, and we hope that this intro was a helpful step for you
toward a better understanding of yourself and others.

-—
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This activity can be done in exclusively lecture format or can be made interactive by asking
participants for examples or suggestions during the lecture. It is best to give definitions for the terms
before asking for examples.

The three main ways people facilitate the Genderbread Person are either making it personal for the
participants (as in the example lecture above), using themselves to make it personal (with anecdotes
or personal examples), or using generic/fictional examples. All have their pros and cons.

As much as possible, finding a facilitator “voice” that is authentic for you for this activity will make the
biggest difference. Don't necessarily facilitate it how you may have seen it done, or exactly how it’s
explained above, if either of those will compromise your voice. When Genderbread goes really well, it
hits hard for people — personally, and in their sense of the social implications of gender. For it to do
this, you need to be able to make an authentic connection between the material and your
participants. connect yourself, these concepts, and the participants.

The Genderbread Person is not meant to be a “utopian” vision of society and gender, but to more
accurately depict the ways we experience gender today.

To gain deeper understanding of all the terms and identity labels prior to conducting the activity, read
Sam’s “ " article ( ) or
book ( ). Both are uncopyrighted and freely available for your
reference or use.

Many of the terms that come up throughout this activity are clarified in our vocab activity. When in
doubt, the definitions can be used word-for-word in the lecture.
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Genderbread Person Handout

Facilitator Guide

The Genderbread Person.« . pomouncdd e dsixuat

===~ Identity

/ ¢~ Attraction

-~
-----

-
- -
Smama

@ mezns a lack of what's on the right side

€D Gender Identity i‘ Gender Expression lgl Anatomical Sex
—- \OMaN-Ness - Femininity ) - FeMale-ness
—- M3N-Ness e Masculinity e — il L o)
Sex Assigned At Birth

[[] Female [] Intersex [] Male

QP Sexualy Attracted to..  and/or (a/0) QP Romantically Attracted to..

) > Women /0 Feminine a/0 Female People () <> Women a/0 Feminine a/0 Female People
) > Men a/0 Masculine a/0 Male People ) > Men 2/0 Masculine a/0 Male People
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Genderbread Person Handout

Participant’s Sheet

The Genderbread Person ..

@ means a lack of what's on the right side

€D Gender dentity * Gender Expression lgl Anatomical Sex
) > — - O >
S — — L —
QP Sexually Attracted to.. QP Romantically Attracted to..
D) ey D >
2 > D >
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Privilege for Sale & Coming Out

Small Group — 101 — Medium Trust — 25 mins - szp.quide/privilegeandco

Materials Setup
e Privileges for Sale Participant Handout e Write different dollar amounts of money
e Coming Out Handout on the scrap paper — one piece per
group

e Scrap paper

Facilitator Framing

e Giving directions for this activity in steps will help ensure that participants don’t miss any part
of the instructions.

e Privilege for sale is an activity that can have a lot of different outcomes and goals, many of
which can be focused on in the debrief. If you want to use the activity to achieve certain
goals/learning outcomes be sure to steer the debrief towards that end.

e The coming out handout flows nicely from privilege for sale but can be used/referenced
anywhere in the curriculum.

Goals & Learning Outcomes

e To acknowledge and investigate privilege.

e To provide an opportunity for participants to empathetically connect and reflect on the
experience of having (or not having) privilege.

e To discuss the variety of privileges that the queer community (and other communities) have
limited access to. Not just legal privileges but social, financial, etc.

e To discuss how no one privilege is more important than another, that for someone any
privilege may feel essential.

e Participants will be able to identify privileges that they take for granted in their everyday life.

e Participants will discuss what types of privileges (social, financial, legal, etc.) are important to
them and why that may differ from others in their group.

e Participants will be able to investigate and discuss what groups may have limited access to
what privileges and effect that lack of access may have on an individual.

Process Steps
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6.
7.

Break participants into small groups, ideally no more than 4 people. Have folks create little
discussion pods around tables or with chairs in a circle, groups should be far away from each
other so they can have a discussion without being distracted by the other groups.

Explain the directions:

“On your sheet there is a list of privileges, for the purposes of this activity, you do not have any
of these privileges. We have removed of these privileges and you, as a group, need to buy
them back from us. Each privilege costs $100. One of us is going to come around in a moment
and give an amount of money to each group. That is the amount of money that you as a
group have to spend. We will give you a few minutes to talk together and decide what
privileges you'd like to buy. After we're going to come back to the big group and debrief.”

Check to see if the group has any questions on the directions.

Pass out dollar amounts for the different groups on scrap paper. (Typically we vary the
amounts from $300-$1400)

Give the groups approximately 5 minutes (giving them a “half-way” / 2 minute warning) to
discuss and decide which privileges they would like to buy.

Debrief the activity as a whole with the group.

Transition into the Coming Out Handout.

Debrief questions

What was this activity like?

How did this activity make you feel?

For some people this is a new experience because they've never thought of privilege in this
way, or in a list form like this.

It can sometimes be a deeply triggering or frustrating activity because perhaps you don't have
access to a lot of these privileges and seeing all of the privileges in a list can be challenging.

For others it can be deeply moving/emotional because they've never thought of all the
privilege that they do have before. This can bring up feelings of guilt or even feelings of shame
for taking things for granted.

How did you go about picking privileges?

42

Some groups go democratic of everyone gets to pick one privilege. Groups with less money
often don't have the opportunity to go that route.

Sometimes different amounts of money change our priorities. Often times groups with less
money will make different decisions than if that same group had had more money.

Often times conversations about values and about life goals come up when folks begin picking
privileges.
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What on this list surprised you?

e Alot of times people don't realize all of the privileges that they take for granted. And that's
often because privilege is invisible to those of us who have privilege it.

e Sometimes people mention that they'd never thought of what it would actually be like not to
be able to use a public bathroom without threat or punishment. It is interesting to think about
that conversation from a personal perspective rather than as a political issue.

Why do you think this activity is called “Privilege for Sale” instead of “Heterosexual Privilege
for Sale” or “Cisgender Privilege for Sale?”

e While some of these privileges may apply to sexuality or gender they may also relate to race,
class, ability, or even religion. We are all likely approaching it from a lens of gender and
sexuality because that’s what we've been focused on today but a lot of different marginalized
experiences/identities apply to this list.

Why do you think we choose money? We could have easily said that each privilege was worth a
token and you have 5 tokens, what does money represent?

e When you have more money you can actually buy privileges, you can move to new locations
where some of the social privileges may be more easily accessed or you can hire a lawyer to
manage adoption paperwork for instance.

e Money is a form of privilege. When you have money you may not be as concerned that you
could lose your job or may be rejected from housing.

e We take money very seriously and we understand how it can affect our decision making
processes.

Why do you think we gave groups different amounts of money?

e Sometimes you can think that you that you only have $500 until you realize that someone was
less privileged than you and then all of a sudden the $500 feels differently.

e It can create animosity between groups even though the groups were simply assigned the
money and it was really the facilitators who should be receiving the animosity.

What have you learned from this activity?

How does this activity and what you're learning from this activity translate into your job or
work?

Coming Out Handout

1. Transition from the Privilege for Sale portion of the activity to the coming out hand out. One
way to do this is to highlight that straight individuals and cisgender individuals often do not
have to navigate a coming out process because their identity is assumed correctly by others.
Not having to come out is a privilege.
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2. Ask a participant in the group to read the first section of the handout (the first block of color)
and then ask another participant to read the next section, continue like this until the whole
handout has been read.

3. Share/highlight with the group the key points on the handout, highlighting everything you
believe might be important information.

Clarify any points above that you didn’t land with your participants that you feel are particularly
relevant and important for the group. Summarize the main learning points that they shared.

You can modify this list to talk about whatever types of privileges you'd like to highlight, like cisgender
privilege, male privilege, christian privilege, or White privilege.

You can experiment with pace (e.g., more decision-making time, or less), group size, rules (e.g.,
introduce a “fire sale” in the last minute of decision-making where certain privileges cost $50), and the
allocations of money (e.g., a huge economic disparity, or everyone getting the same amounts).

No two facilitations of this activity will be the same, even if — especially if — you try to make that
happen. Sometimes you'll have a group be righteously mad. Other times the primary emotion
surfaced might be sadness or dejection. Sometimes groups are just confused or baffled by these
examples “How did I not see this before?!”

The trick to this activity is not trying to elicit a particular emotional/cognitive response, but being
present to whatever your group surfaces, and honing in on that: what're they feeling, where's it
coming from, what meaning might you make from it?

This activity is a ton of fun if you let your group take the lead, and follow them where they take you.
Enjoy the ride.

The word “privilege” has become really loaded, and a borderline trigger for a lot of people. Further,
other activities or interventions meant to help folks “check their privilege” often backfire, or fall short.
Keeping this all in mind, Privilege for Sale is (or at least can be) different. Just be prepared for
pushback, and do your best to validate or understand where it is coming from. We've had tons of
participants, after the training or on a break after this activity, tell us something along the lines of
“That was so different from how I've always seen ‘privilege’ done.”

This activity will really hit home for some people. Give people time to debrief and be ready to validate
any emotions that come up for the group. It is also a really great activity to refer back to later in the
training because a lot of people really connect with this activity and can use it to understand other
impacts of bias or prejudice or how additional levels and layers of privilege would interact.
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14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.

25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.

Privileges for Sale

Please look at the following list of privileges. Each privilege costs $100 to purchase. As a
group, please purchase as many privileges as your money allows.

Celebrating your marriage(s) with your family, friends, and coworkers.

Paid leave from your job when grieving the death of your partner(s).

Inheriting from your partner(s)/lover(s)/companion(s) automatically after their death.
Having multiple positive TV role models.

Sharing health insurance with your partner(s).

Being able to find role models of the same sexual orientation.

Being able to see your partner(s) immediately if in an accident or emergency.

Being able to be promoted in your job without your sexuality playing a factor.
Adopting your children.

. Filing joint tax returns.
. Able to obtain child custody.
. Being able to complete forms and paperwork with the information you feel most accurately

communicates who you are.

Being able to feel safe in your interactions with police officers.

Being able to travel, or show ID in restaurants or bars, without fear you'll be rejected.
Kissing/hugging/being affectionate in public without threat or punishment.

Being able to discuss and have access to multiple family planning options.

Not questioning normalcy both sexually and culturally.

Reading books or seeing movies about a relationship you wish you could have.
Receiving discounted homeowner insurance rates with your recognized partner(s).
Raising children without worrying about state intervention.

Having others comfort and support you when a relationship ends.

Being a foster parent.

Using public restrooms without fear of threat or punishment.

Being employed as a preschool or elementary school teacher without people assuming you will
“corrupt” the children.

Dating the person you desired in your teens.

Raising children without worrying about people rejecting your children because of your sexuality.
Living openly with your partner(s).

Receiving validation from your religious community.

Being accepted by your neighbors, colleagues, and new friends.

Being able to go to a doctor and getting treatment that doesn’t conflict with your identity.

Being able to access social services without fear of discrimination, or being turned away.
Sponsoring your partner(s) for citizenship.

Being open and having your partner(s) accepted by your family.
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“0 0M|Nq Ou‘r“w the process by which someone..

1. Accepts and identifies with their gender identity and/or sexual orientation; and

2. Shares their identity willingly with others.

SDM&HM&Q We talk about coming out as if it were a one time thing. But for

most folks coming out is a series of decisions — sometimes daily —
that LGBTQ people navigate in every new setting they enter. (Most people aren't like
Ellen, where they come out once and then the whole world knows.)

— may be “0YT” > in some spaces, and ‘ -~ in others.

=1 /(> to Family /(> to Friends /(> to Classmates/Coworkers -1/ (> to Religious Community
A decision to come out to a person or group is one of sakety, combort, frust, & readness.

It's dangerous, unhealthy, and unhelpful to force someone to come out, or to “out”
someone else (i.e., disclosing someone’s gender identity or sexual orientation to others

without the person’s consent), regardless of your intentions (sometimes people think
they're being helpful, or acting on the person’s behalf to conquer their fears), but...

IF SOMEONE 0OMPS 0yT T0 Y0u,.

1. Say “l always knew,” or downplay the significance of their sharing with you.
2. Go tell everyone, bragging about your “new trans friend.”
3. Forget that they are still the person you knew, befriended, or loved before.

4. Ask probing questions, or cross personal barriers you wouldn't have crossed earlier.

DON'T

5. Assume you know why they came out to you.

. Know this is a sign of huge trust! (Yay!)

. Check-in on how confidential this is (Do other people know? Is this a secret?)

. Remember that their gender/sexuality is just one dimension (of many) of them.

. Show interest and curiosity about this part of them that they are sharing with you.

a oA w N =

. Ask them how you can best support them.
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Large Group — 101 — Low Trust — 10 mins - szp.quide/anonymousga

Materials Setup
e Scrap paper/index cards e Pass outindex cards/ scrap paper to all
participants and ensure everyone has a

e Pen/pencils .
pen/pencil

e (optional) hat or some kind of vessel to
put questions in

Facilitator Framing

e This activity is best when you feel comfortable fielding most questions that participants may
ask. You can always skip or come back to a question that is asked as you'll have them on the
cards and may not get to all the questions regardless of ability to answer them.

Goals & objectives

e Provide an opportunity for all participants to ask the questions they are most curious about
and have them answered

e An opportunity to generate scenarios for the activities later in the training

Process Steps

1. Hand out scrap paper or index cards.

2. Let participants know that this section of the training is called Anonymous Q&A and they
should use the paper in front of them to ask you any question they like. Let them know (if you
are comfortable) that this question can be about anything. Personal, political, social, curiosity,
misconceptions, random ideas, or a scenario that they would like to go over as a group. Ask
them to fold their cards, then leave the cards on your desk or pass around a “hat” of some
sort. Make sure you collect an index card from everyone (even if it's blank).

3. Once the questions have all been handed in, review them (quickly) and see if there are any
that are on a similar topic to address all at once.

4. Read out the questions verbatim and answer them to the best of your ability. Alternatively
share the questions with the group and ask for input if you think others would also have
interesting thoughts/input on the questions.

Notes

It is important to wait until the vast majority (if not all) hand in their questions so that people don't
feel like you will know which question is theirs because you've already begun to read through them.
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If you receive a question that you are not comfortable answering - don't read it aloud. Only you and
the participant that asked the question will recognize that you did not answer the question.

Alternatively, leave a number of questions unanswered and let participants know that you will get
back to them via email about questions you did not get to answer. This will allow you time to discuss
optional answers with others before answering the question(s) - but it is important to follow through
on this.

Remember it is important not to phrase your opinions as if you speak for an entire group identity. If
you're answering personally (e.g., the question is about bisexual people and you're bi), be explicit in
grounding your answers in your experience with your identity, or your understandings.

This activity can create a lot of opportunities to facilitate discussions that the participants really want
to have. They wrote down the topic so you know at least one person is interested. As you move
forward in your facilitation skills you can really allow these conversations to go and just help focus the
conversations to be productive dialogue.

Reading out the questions verbatim allows you to practice your_ ( ).
Often participants phrase a question in a way that uses a word that sounds awkward, or in a way that
others may find offensive. Practice rephrasing or correcting without shutting someone down. If
someone writes, “Why do all queers go to pride?” You could read that out loud and then say, “Right.
Okay, so this question is asking why do all queer people go to pride. I just added the word ‘people,’ in
there because we encourage using the word queer as an adjective. So, why do all queer people go to
pride?” Then answer the question. (Spoilers: they don't)
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Large Group — 101 — Low Trust — 10 mins — szp.qguide/fearfullyaskedquestions

Materials Setup

e Sticky flip-chart paper e Write up and number a few of your
pre-determined fearfully asked questions

e Markers i
on the flip chart paper

Facilitator Framing

e Safe Zone participants are often afraid to ask questions that they perceive as being too basic,
prejudiced, or offensive. That does not mean, however, that most people aren’t wondering
about those types of questions — they are! This activity is designed to confront those unasked
questions and provide an opportunity for participants to get accurate, healthy answers.

Goals & objectives

e Participants will be able to separate myth from fact, and accurate information from hearsay,
regarding popular misconceptions about LGBTQ people.

Process Steps

1. Prior to the training, prepare a flipchart (or powerpoint slide) with 5 - 7 common questions you
believe your group might have regarding LGBTQ people, but would be afraid to ask (e.g.,
because they are worried about appearing ignorant or offending someone).

2. Number the questions and write them large and legibly, allowing for people to easily identify
them. The numbers allow participants to simply call out a number (instead of having to
actually ask the question themselves).

3. When you begin this activity, hang the flipchart where participants can see them.

4. Provide context for the questions. For example, “These are common questions that folks have
regarding LGBTQ people and we wanted to provide an opportunity to answer any questions
that you have on this sheet. What is the number of one of the questions you would like us to
answer?”

5. Answer each question a participant chooses. Continue until all questions are answered, the
group stops choosing numbers, or you are out of time.

Sample “Fearfully Asked” Questions

1. What bathroom does a transgender person use?

2. How do lesbians have sex?
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Are all transgender people gay?

Is bisexuality real?

Why is there a LGBTQ community, but not a straight community?
Why are gay men more promiscuous?

Don't all these labels actually make it worse not better?

In a gay relationship, who is the man?

o 0 N o U A~ W

Can I ask someone how they identify?

10. Is a man who dates a transgender woman actually gay?

This format of question answering gives you total control to only answer questions you're comfortable
answering, and to prepare (or even script out) your answers beforehand. Take advantage of this
difference! Practice answering the questions with a co-facilitator or peer. Ask them to challenge you in
particular ways you're nervous about encountering in the room.

Come up with several distinct ways to answer every question (e.g., in a really direct, short way; using
an anecdote or statistic; situating your answer within a larger picture; using humor) and you'll be able
to choose the one, in the moment, that best matches the tone of the room and group you're with.

None of the questions in our sample list are “easy” to answer, nor do they have one correct answer.
Just asking some of those questions, or creating space for questions like this, is potentially opening a
can of worms. Be ready for this when you choose your questions, or decide to use this activity.
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Small Group - 201 — Medium Trust — 15 mins — szp.quide/scenarios

Materials Setup

e Scenario handouts for participants e Cut the scenarios up and have at least
one for each small group

Facilitator Framing

e Scenario are an opportunity for your group to practice putting some of the concepts and
understandings they learned earlier in the workshop into practice.

e We recommend coming up with 2-3 scenarios that you believe would most benefit your group
to work through. This benefit might be determined by a scenario the group is most likely to
encounter, the group is most likely to struggle with, or another criteria.

e We've included the participant handout and facilitator guide for each scenario with suggested
bullets for guidance.

Goals & objectives

e To provide real world situations that participants may encounter in the future and for
participants to think through and game plan the different ways to handle the situation

e To empower participants to feel more comfortable applying the knowledge that they have
gained during the course of the training in real-world situations

e To provide a framework for participants to use when working through scenarios and when
considering scenarios for multiple periods in time.

Process Steps

1. Introduce the activity to the participants. For example, “Now that we're nearing the end of our
training, we are going to focus on some scenarios related to these concepts that you may
encounter in your daily lives.”

2. Split your participants up into small groups of 3 - 4.

3. Provide each group with a scenario to work through. Let the groups know they're going to
have a few minutes to discuss solutions before sharing their thoughts with the larger group.

4. If any group finishes remarkably quickly, use the scenario learning cycle to prompt additional
questions (ex. “What could you do to prevent the scenario from happening? What might you
do immediately afterward or following up later in the week after the scenario?”) to elicit
further conversation.
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5. Bring the groups back together and review the scenarios.

6. Ask an individual from each group to read out their scenario and then ask the whole group to
discuss what they thought the best way to handle the scenario would be. Ask for feedback
from the larger group, add your own, and then move onto the next group repeating the
process.

7. If the group is struggling to work through a scenario, particularly if they don't understand the
concern, them through these steps:

Group Work Stages:

1. Clarify the problem: At this stage you really want to identify what the problem is and make
sure everyone in the group agrees on what the issue is before moving to the next step.

2. Identify options: Have the group brainstorm a number of different options that are available
to address the problem at hand. These options may be more or less feasible but you don't
need to address that at this stage, just get the options out there.

3. Weigh outcomes: Now that you've identified options, talk through some of the options
presented and what the possible outcomes of going that direction could be. Weigh pros and
cons.

4. Do it. Listen. Reassess: Talk through implementing the decided upon direction with the
group. If it would be helpful talk about some possible future barriers/complications after
taking that path and talk through those as well as possible scenarios.

The instructions above provide some clarity for the facilitator on how to debrief scenarios with the
group. If the group’s answers are all focused on the “in the moment” response to the scenario
prompt additional thoughts by using the scenarios learning cycle:

N\

/ ,

Before After
\ /

During is “in the moment” that the scenario is taking place. After is immediately after where as
follow-up maybe later in the day or a week or two later. Before is focusing in on how to prevent that
moment from happening again.

, During

Follow-up 4

A_—
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One of the key things that we want y'all to get out of this exercises relates to the “
( )- The idea behind the platinum rule is that while the golden rule (treat others
as you would want to be treated) is a good start, it leads us to believe (and treat) people as we wanted
to be treated and not necessarily how they want to be treated. In discussing these scenarios hopefully
we've teased out a bit that there are often different ways to address an issue or a sticking point and
that the most important thing in order to support someone is to find out how they want to be
supported.

You can do this activity a number of different ways. Here are a few:

Process the scenarios as one large group having an all-group discussion, rather than having people
break into small groups (one scenario at a time).

"o

Put a spectrum on a wall with three signs labeled “very confident”, “somewhat confident”, and “not at
all confident”. Read out a scenario and ask people to place themselves on the spectrum of how
confident they would be in handling this situation you just described. From here, you can have
individuals from one of the groups (e.g., the “very confident”) share their thoughts, or you can split
people into smaller groups — taking people from all parts of the spectrum and putting them together.

Cut up the scenarios sheet and hang different scenarios around the room. Ask people to stand by the
one they would most like to answer or work through, then follow the same process steps above (make
sure no group gets too big; it's preferable to break a big group into two smaller ones, even if they're
working on the same scenario).

The more relevant the scenario, the most powerful this activity. Some of the best scenarios present
themselves earlier in the training in the form of a prescient, complicated question from a participant.
If you get a question that sounds like a scenario (e.g., “What do you do when...?” or “My
coworker/classmate said...?), write it down and tell the group you'll cover it later, and use it as a
scenario during this activity.

We provide scenarios on the next few pages as examples. However, we recommend limiting the total
number of scenarios you provide your group to 2-3, and choosing the scenarios that are most likely to
help your participants.
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Scenarios for Staff, Faculty,

. You've noticed a fellow staff member making comments that are subtly homophobic and

transphobic, which are making you and others uncomfortable. You're unsure if this person
realizes what they are saying is problematic or not. What might you do?

. You're interacting with someone new, and they introduce themselves as Alex and they look

very androgynous. You're not really sure what pronouns to use - what should you do?

. You're giving a tour to someone who are considering hiring and they ask is if the office is

LGBTQ friendly. How might you respond?

. A student/participant you work with on a regular basis shares with you that they are gay and

are nervous to tell others and worried about how this will affect their hireability in the future.
How do you support this person?

. A staff member shares at a staff meeting that they are trans* and would like everyone to use a

new name and the pronouns “they/them/theirs,” while everyone at the staff meeting is very
positive and affirming in the moment, afterward there is a lot of confusion and hesitancy
about how to proceed. People aren't sure how to let others know, what to do when they mess
up pronouns/names, what other types of support this person may want/need. How might you
proceed?

. You bring up the idea of your office/team doing a diversity/inclusion training. There is a lot of

eye rolling and no one says anything affirming about the idea. Someone comments, “we're all
really accepting here, I don't think we need to do that sort of training.” How might you
respond?
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. You've started to become closer friends with someone over the last 3 months. One day you're

hanging out and they seem really nervous and uncomfortable. You ask them what’s up and
they tell you that they're gay and worried you're going to reject them and that everyone is
going to reject them. What do you do?

. You're working on a project with some people in class and the first time you meet someone

says, “Ugh this project is so gay right? What a stupid project.” A few people look at each other
awkwardly but don't say anything. How might you respond?

. You're helping out with a program when someone comes over and says, “Hey this is Alex, Alex

is here to help us set-up.” And then walks away leaving you with Alex. You've never met before,
Alex is very androgynous and you're not really sure what pronouns to use with Alex. You're
going to be introducing them to others helping set up, so you want to know. What might you
do?

. You're part of an LGBTQ and ally group and one day you make the suggestion that the group

might want to do and LGBTQ-awareness training. You've noticed a lot of internalized
homophobia as well as biphobia/transphobia within the group and you're hoping that the
training would be a good way to start getting at those things. There is a lot of discomfort and
someone says, “It’s straight people who need to be educated not us.” What might you do?

One of your teachers/mentors (who you know quite well) is talking about sexuality or gender
in class. When the discussion goes quiet they turn to one student, who is out as gay on
campus, and ask if you have anything additional to add. This makes you feel really
uncomfortable, what do you do?
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Facilitation Suggestions: Staff, Faculty, Employees Scenarios

1. You've noticed a fellow staff member making comments that are subtly homophobic and
transphobic, which are making you and others uncomfortable. You're unsure if this person
realizes what they are saying is problematic or not. What might you do?

o Follow-up. Ask to chat with this person and then let them know what you've noticed
and give an example.

o Relate in. When giving feedback, relate-in to this person: “I used to mess this up all the
time and while it took some practice at getting better, I've noticed people feel more at
ease around me now.”

o Strategize. Talk with another staff member about how to respond in the moment to
the negative comments. Come up with a response that feels appropriate and try it out
the next time this person makes a comment.

o Delegate. Perhaps you know that you're not willing to connect with this person
directly. Find someone who would be and support them approaching this person.

o Keys to success

m  Give them the benefit of the doubt that they likely didn't mean to make anyone
uncomfortable and don't realize it's having that effect.

m Highlight this is about their actions not their identity. A lot of times people take
things as a personal attack, be sure to speak to and focus on the behavior not
on the person’s beliefs/identity or whether they are a good/bad person.

2. You're interacting with someone new, and they introduce themselves as Alex and they look
very androgynous. You're not really sure what pronouns to use - what should you do?

o Share your pronouns & ask theirs. “Hey my name is Marla and my pronouns are
she/her/hers. What are your pronouns?”

m This is particularly important if you're going to be introducing them to other
people.

o Use their name. If you haven't asked their pronouns yet, use their name every time.
“Alex is here to check out the office. Alex have you been anywhere else today?”

o If you mess up, apologize, correct, and move on. “He was -- oh, I'm sorry, Alex. She.
She was saying that she was over at the pizza place for lunch.”

3. Astudent/participant you work with on a regular basis shares with you that they are gay and
are nervous to tell others and worried about how this will affect their hireability in the future.
How do you support this person?

o Affirm them and appreciate their trust. “I am really glad that you know this about
yourself and I also appreciate your honesty in sharing your concerns with me. Those
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concerns are real and valid to worry about, and perhaps there are ways that we can
work through them that can make them less scary.”

o Find out what’s most pressing. Perhaps they want to talk about coming out to
people. Perhaps they want to talk about the job. Inquire more into which one they
want to talk about first/today, depending on the time you have together.

o Ask clarifying questions. “Who have you told so far? What have their reactions been?
Are there specific people that you're nervous about telling? Do you have any evidence
that this may go well or go poorly? Do you feel that it will be safe for you to tell the
people you want to tell? What kind of timeline are you hoping to tell people on?”

o Be honest. “This might affect your hireability because some people do discriminate
against people for being gay. I hope that doesn’t happen to you, because it's simply not
acceptable for people to treat you that way.. But there are ways to navigate the job
process to better ensure you're supported in your job as a gay employee, and to help
identify if a workplace is a good fit for you.”

4. A staff member shares at a staff meeting that they are trans* and would like everyone to use a
new name (Trey) and the pronouns “they/them/theirs,” while everyone at the staff meeting is
very positive and affirming in the moment, afterward there is a lot of confusion and hesitancy
about how to proceed. People aren't sure how to let others know, what to do when they mess
up pronouns/names, what other types of support Trey may want/need. How might you
proceed?

o Ask Trey. “Hey Trey, wanted to thank you for sharing that important information with
me and let you know that I'm here to support you in this process. I recognize I have
gaps in my knowledge around the different challenges you may face, so if there is
anything I can do to help that I'm not doing, or not doing well, please let me know.”

o Practice using their name/pronouns regardless if they are around. Get in the habit of
using this person’s new name/pronouns whenever you talk about them. If you want
additional practice, ask a colleague to listen to you while you tell a story about the first
time you and Trey met, or an experience you've had with Trey, using their new
name/pronouns the entire time.

o Acknowledge, apologize, and move on when you mess up. “Yeah that was Trey’s
idea. He -- I mean they, they were saying...” You can sometimes simply correct yourself
and move on without an apology, though sometimes after repeated mistakes it makes
sense to apologize. However, apologize for them, not for you.

o If you learn something new ask if you can share with the group. If you mess up and
Trey says, “You know, I'd rather you correct yourself than spend time apologizing.” Ask
if this is information you can share with others if they are wondering. There is going to
be a lot of practice and educating, and Trey doesn’t have to do it alone.

5. You bring up the idea of your office/team doing a diversity/inclusion training. There is a lot of
eye rolling and no one says anything affirming about the idea. Someone comments, “we’re all
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really accepting here, I don't think we need to do that sort of training.” How might you
respond?

o Separate acceptance vs. awareness/knowledge. “I think that we all are really
accepting but things change and sometimes we might not have the awareness or the
knowledge to back up our value of acceptance. Always good to brush up on our
understanding.”

o Investment communicates importance. “I agree, we are all really accepting, but in
order for us to communicate that we are invested in creating accepting and open
environments, we need to invest time into additional training.”

o For other people. “We all know that we're really accepting here but that doesn’t mean
other people are aware of it. This will provide us some context to help communicate
that acceptance to others.”

o Our impressions don’t always align. “I would like to think of myself as a very
accepting person, and I know that I have some areas of growth as well. However, it’s
not easy to know what you don’t know and training helps highlight some gaps that we
may not be able to see we have.”

Facilitation Suggestions: Students, Youth, Peers Scenarios

1. You've started to become closer friends with someone over the last 3 months. One day you're
hanging out and they seem really nervous and uncomfortable. You ask them what’s up and
they tell you that they’re gay and worried you're going to reject them and that everyone is
going to reject them. What do you do?

o Affirm them and their sharing with you. “I really appreciate you sharing that with
me, we're cool, it doesn’t change anything between us that you're gay. I'm glad you felt
you could tell me.”

o Ask questions. “Who else are you wanting to tell? Are there any people you've told
already that have reacted badly? Are there other people you know who have your
back?”

o Offer to think things through. “If you want to walk through what it might be like to
tell other people or how best to do that, we could do that.”

o Let them know you have their back. “You know if anyone reacts badly to you, know
I've got your back. I'm also down to talk to them and let them know it’s cool with me.”

2. You're working on a project with some people in class and the first time you meet someone
says, “Ugh this project is so gay right? What a stupid project.” A few people look at each other
awkwardly but don’t say anything. How might you respond?

o Correct their language without addressing it directly. “Yeah, it is kind of a rough
project, but I'm sure we can figure it out.”
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o Address it in the moment by assuming best intent. “Hey, I'm sure you didn't mean
anything by it, but if we could not call this assignment gay, I'd appreciate that.”

o Follow up with them after. “Hey, I'm not sure if you realized this but you called the
project gay and it just kinda bums me out when people do that, so I wanted to let you
know.”

o Connect with someone else to ask if they’'d address it. Perhaps they have a friend
in the group or someone who is more comfy with confrontation. Ask after if they'd be
up for letting the person know it wasn't an okay thing to say.”

3. You're helping out with a program when someone comes over and says, “Hey this is Alex, Alex
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

o Introduce yourself including your name and pronouns. “Hey Alex, I'm Max, I use
he/him pronouns.”

o Invite Alex to share their pronouns. “What are your pronouns? I ask because I'm
sure I'm going to be introducing you to new people and want to make sure I get it
right.”

o Use Alex’s name and no pronouns. “Alex is going to be helping us out with this, and
I'm happy to have Alex on the team.”

4. You're part of an LGBTQ and ally group and one day you make the suggestion that the group
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

o Agree and add more. “I think you're totally right that straight people often are more
ignorant of what it means to be part of the LGBTQ community than this group is. And
perhaps learning more about it will help us understand how to explain things better.”

o Call yourself in. “I know I've learned a lot from being in this group and I know that
there is still a lot more to learn. I think that we all could grow in our abilities to
understand and connect with each other, so that's why I'm interested.”

o One marginalized identity doesn’t give you info on another. “I think that because
we have so many identities in this group, I know for me being ____ doesn’t mean that
I know what it's like to be . Gay people can have a lack of understanding about
trans identity, or what it’s like to be pansexual, and vise-versa.”

5. One of your friends recently came out to you as genderqueer. They want you to use
they/them/their pronouns and let you know their new name is Jay. You find yourself really
struggling with pronouns and find yourself stressed about messing up Jay’s name/pronouns
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with others. You want to be affirming and are really worried you're not doing a good job. What
might you do?

O

Practice on your own. Grab a friend and ask if you can if you can practiced talking
about Jay with their new name and pronouns. Tell a story about you and Jay using their
new name/pronouns, or talk about how you first became friends.

Practice regardless if Jay is around. Sometimes people can get lazy if their friend isn't
around, ensure that you're using the right name/pronouns at all times.

Ask others to hold you accountable. Tell your mutual friends, “Hey, I'm really
struggling with this. Please remind me when I mess up.”

When you mess up, apologize and move on. Even if it feels like a really big deal in
the moment, apologize, correct yourself, and move on. That will allow things not to
become focused on you for messing up.

Apologize to Jay outside of those moments. If you find yourself messing up a lot, let
Jay know, “Hey, I'm sorry I'm struggling so much with this. Please know I really respect
you and know this is important, and I'm going to keep working on it and getting better.”
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Wrap-Up and Feedback

Housekeeping — 101 — Low Trust — 5 mins - szp.quide/wrapup

Materials Setup

e Participant feedback forms e N/A

o Self feedback form

Facilitator Framing

e Wrapping up the workshop is important in order to provide a sense of closure to the
experience, review the material covered, and initiate thoughts around next steps.

e We recommend asking for feedback that you know you will use. If you are looking to
change/alter the content material, ask for feedback on the content, if you want feedback on
your facilitation process, ask for questions on your facilitation. Do not ask for feedback you are
not going to meaningfully use.

Goals & objectives

e Wrap up the program by summarizing the takeaway points from the different aspects of the
training.

e Remind participants the events of the training giving them a chance to reflect on what they've
experienced and learned over the course of the program.

e Opportunity to make any last points or take-aways.

e Opportunity for participants give feedback on the training that will help the facilitator grow
and develop the training in the future.

Process Steps:

1. Let participants know that we are going to be wrapping up the training.

2. Summarize the activities that you did during the training, the main takeaway points that you
want participants to leave with, and what they can do from here to continue being and
becoming better allies. Some points you might want to include are:

e encourage participants to continue to continue these conversations outside of this
space

e encourage participants to inquire and address negative/hurtful language/assumptions,
even when they are nervous

e Encourage participants to continue to educate self/others on these and other social
justice issues
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3. Let them know that in a minute you'll be looking for their feedback. Let them know what you
will use the feedback for and how important it is to growing and bettering the trainings in the
future (this will encourage folks to give meaningful feedback).

4. Hand out feedback forms and let participants know where to put them when they are done. If
you'll be sticking around the workshop for questions afterward let participants know that as
well. Any additional information you want your group to have be sure to share before passing
out feedback forms.

Modify the feedback form to fit your needs and interests and for the participating group.

Remember: ( ) is critical to you improving
as a facilitator. We wrote a whole article on it we think it's that important. So while it can be very
tempting to forget or not do this part, your future self will thank you! You can even do it while your
participants fill out their feedback forms!

It is very easy to forget to or not prioritize Wrap-up as a part of the training. However, if you have a
decision between doing another scenario or wrapping the workshop up in a meaningful way we
encourage you to choose Wrap-up. The training will feel much more complete when you give a little
summary at the end and provide some context for next steps. Wrap-up also increases the quality of
the feedback you receive as you have just reminded participants all of the different aspects that you
covered the training.
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Participant Feedback Form

Please answer honestly :)

What is one thing that you learned from the training today? What did you enjoy about today’s
training?

What could be improved for the next time this training is facilitated? How do you think this training
could be improved?

Who would you recommend this training to? What would you say to get them interested?

Additional feedback for the facilitators? This could be in regards to material covered or the facilitation
process.
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Facilitator SELF Feedback Form

Reflection questions for you to complete at the end of your facilitation

We often think to ask Complete this form

our participants & when you hand out Set aside time & plan to Get an editable version
co-facilitator for participant feedback take action on this of this form, and other

_ feedback, but we have forms. They give you feedback. Don't just resources, free at
just as much good insight feedback, while you give reflect - use it! TheSafeZoneProject.com
to offer ourselves. you feedback.

What went well?

What could have gone better?

What aspect of the training do I want to change? How do I want to change it?

What aspect elicited the most learning for the group? How can I recreate it?

What questions or moments was I unprepared for? What follow-up What follow-up did I promise
do I need to do before next time?

participants?

Anything facilitation-wise I want to change, or try out, next time?

Final thoughts for next time?
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Resources

Websites, reading lists, recommended orgs, and more at szp.quide/resources

Full List of Vocab Terms: szp.guide/vocab
Websites for Learning More

Asexual Visibility and Education Network — www.asexuality.org
Bisexual.org — www.bisexual.org

Everyday Feminism — www.everydayfeminism.com

Get Real — www.getrealeducation.org
It's Pronounced Metrosexual — www.itspronouncedmetrosexual.com

Salacious — https://salaciousmagazine.com

Soul Force - www.soulforce.org
TransWhat? — www.transwhat.org
We Are The Youth — www.wearetheyouth.org

Organizations Doing Good

GLAAD — www.glaad.org — Gay & Lesbian Alliance Against Defamation

GLSEN — www.glsen.org — Gay, Lesbian, and Straight Education Network

Family Acceptance Project — https://familyproject.sfsu.edu/

It Gets Better Project — www.itgetsbetter.org

National Gay and Lesbian Task Force — www.thetaskforce.org

The “Not All Like That” (NALT) Project — http://notalllikethat.org

The Religious Institute — http://www.religiousinstitute.org

PFLAG — www.pflag.org — "Parents, Families, Friends, and Allies United with LGBT People"
Transgender Law Center — www.transgenderlawcenter.org

The Trevor Project — www.thetrevorproject.org

Want even more Resources?

We have even more resources that don't fit on this page. Head to
www.thesafezoneproject.com/resources to find more!

Are you, or is someone you know, in crisis?

Trevor Hotline: “If you're thinking about suicide, you deserve immediate help.”

Call 1-866-488-7386 or text “TREVOR" to 1-202-304-1200

Trans Lifeline: “A peer support service run by trans people, for trans and questioning callers.”
Call 877-565-8860 (United States) or 877-330-6366 (Canada)
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Curriculum 5.0 Edition

Late Updated July 18, 2018

Check out www.TheSafeZoneProject.com for the most recent version. Sign up for the free
mailing list to stay current.

Help evolve this document!

Using this curriculum? Have tweaks, suggestions, new activities you use, specific scenarios you like, or
new ways to facilitate it? Awesome! Let us know so we can share your good work with others. Contact
us at yo@thesafezoneproject.com.

What's new in the 5th Edition?

v Accessibility overhaul, including higher contrast ratios and more legible body text typefaces

v Every activity and handout links to a parallel document on the SZP website, where you can find
more tips, context, and help

Added multiple training timelines, a training set-up guide, and “about this curriculum”

Reworked lectures and example framing for most activities

R X N

Sprinkled more facilitator advice throughout, including several new “Unlock the Magic” tips

v New vocab terms, updated definitions, and rewrote facilitator steps in activity walkthrough
Uncopyright

This document was created and uncopyrighted (szp.guide/uncopyright) by Meg Bolger and Sam
Killermann — in the spirit of accessibility, advancing equity, and promoting social justice — along with
all of the other materials and resources at www.TheSafeZoneProject.com.
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WHAT IS A SAFE SPACE?

A safe space is a supportive and affirming environment for lesbian, gay,
bisexual, trans/transgender, and queer (LGBTQ) students. While we can
never ensure that any space is going to be “safe” and affirming one hundred
percent of the time, a safe space is a place, group, or community that is
intentionally working to affirm LGBTQ people. From our National School
Climate Survey, we know that a majority of LGBTQ students feel unsafe at
school and are likely to skip class or even full days of school to avoid the
anti-LGBTQ name-calling, bullying and harassment they face on a daily
basis. Holding the dual position of controlling classroom environments,

and often having a voice to advocate on LGBTQ students’ behalf to school
administration, educators maintain an invaluable role in creating positive
learning environments. They are also the direct actors in implementing
LGBTQ content in class curricula or serving as a faculty advisor for students
to formally organize supportive groups on campus. For many students,
having adult allies in school to whom they can turn for support — or even the
simple knowledge that LGBTQ allies exist at their school — can help create a
welcoming and safe environment for students to learn.

WHAT DOES THE SAFE SPACE SYMBOL MEAN?

You might recognize some of the components of the
Safe Space symbol, which features the LGBTQ pride
flag and displays a community of triangles that honor
the gay pink triangle and lesbian black triangle from
Nazi Germany during World War Il. These symbols
were assigned to and then reclaimed by gay men and
lesbians, respectively.

The LGBTQ pride flag, or the rainbow flag, was
designed by Gilbert Baker and first appeared in 1978,
when it was flown during the San Francisco Gay and
Lesbian Freedom Day Parade. The different colors of
the flag symbolize different components of the com-
munity. At one time a black stripe added at the bottom symbolized a hope
for victory over AIDS. In 2017, Philadelphia’s office of LGBT Affairs’ More
Color, More Pride Campaign released a flag with black and brown stripes on
top of the rainbow flag to symbolize the need to center the experiences of
Black and Brown LGBTQ people within LGBTQ advocacy. We've followed
this lead in adding black and brown stripes to the safe space symbol so that
Black and Brown students can see this symbol and understand that the safe
space being created has them in mind.

GLSEN' glsen.org

We’ve combined these potent symbols for the Safe Space stickers and post-
ers. The emblem reminds us of the joy of the diverse, accepting community
we hope to build through resources like the Safe Space Kit, as well as the
struggle against oppression we face as we try to make that vision a reality.
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WHO SHOULD PUT UP THE SAFE SPACE
KIT STICKER?

Anyone can display a Safe Space Symbol to
show their allyship to the LGBTQ community,
and to promote LGBTQ visibility. You do not
have to be an expert in LGBTQ identity to
display a Safe Space Sticker. However, teach-
ers who display the Safe Space Sticker should
be prepared for students to approach them
about LGBTQ identity. By displaying a Safe
Space Sticker, you are telling students that you
will listen to them, affirm their chosen or shared
names, pronouns, or other identities, and can
refer them to someone in the school who they
can talk to more.

GLSEN requests that educators and school
leaders who display our Safe Space Sticker to
be prepared to:

Act in allyship with the LGBTQ community in
and outside of school.

Have a student approach you to discuss their
gender identity or sexual orientation, and be
familiar with a student’s right to privacy, where
you do not disclose identity information to
others.

in conversations.

Learn, use, and affirm new identity and
relationship terms and experiences.

HOW DO | USE THE SAFE SPACE KIT?
GLSEN recommends that you carefully read
through the Safe Space Kit to gain an under-
standing of how to begin advocating for your
LGBTAQ students. This kit will provide you with
practical ways to transform your school into a
safer space for all students, particularly LGBTQ
students, by supporting and educating students,
sharing your knowledge with other educators and
advocating for school-wide changes. The “Ask
Yourself” questions throughout this guide pro-
vide an opportunity for you to consider your own
experiences and beliefs about the information

provided and how it may relate to your own work
in school. Once you have reviewed the guide, you

will be ready to act in allyship by displaying the

Safe Space posters in your office or classroom.

You will also be better prepared to prevent and/or

intervene in LGBTQ-based bullying and bias.

WHAT IS THE SAFE SPACE KIT?

: The Safe Space Kitis designed to help educators
: create a positive learning environment for LGBTQ
students. We believe that one of the most effec-

: tive ways for an educator to create a safe space

is to be supportive and act in allyship to LGBTQ

students. The hard copy of the Safe Space Kit

includes valuable information on adult allyship, 10
Safe Space stickers and 2 Safe Space posters

¢ along with a comprehensive list of resources and

referral sources. The downloaded PDF version
includes this information, a printable poster and
printable stickers. By displaying the posters and

: stickers, you can make your allyship with LGBTQ
. students visible within the school community. In
either form, the Safe Space Kitincludes practical
:ways that you can begin advocating for LGBTQ

¢ visibility and create a safer school environment

: for all students.

WHAT’S INSIDE THE SAFE SPACE KIT?
Affirm students’ chosen names and pronouns :

Know the Issues gives background infor-
mation about LGBTQ students’ experiences in

school and anti-LGBTQ bias.

Support describes specific actions you can

take to be an effective advocate for LGBTQ
. students, some helpful “dos and donts” of adult
: allyship, and suggestions for interrupting anti-

LGBTQ language.

Educate discusses ways to bring LGBTQ

: visibility into your curriculum and inform other
. educators and school leaders about institutional
supports for LGBTQ students, including policies
: for combating anti-LGBTQ bias and behavior.

Advocate provides strategies improving

school climate for LGBTQ students at your
: school.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG QUESTIONS ABOUT THE SAFE SPACE KIT
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What is allyship?

In a society that stigmatizes those who are not
a member of the majority or dominant group, it
is important for those that have privilege to act
in allyship. Acting in allyship is when an indi-
vidual, sometimes a member of the majority or
dominant group, speaks out and acts in solidar-
ity with a person or group that is targeted.
Allyship works to end oppression by supporting
and advocating for people who are stigmatized,
discriminated against or treated unfairly. This
can come in various forms such as interrupt-
ing individual moments of bias, to asking for
systematic changes to eliminate unfairness and
relieve injustices.

In the LGBTQ community, acting in allyship is
based on supporting and advocating for the
rights of LGBTQ people in a heteronormative
world. Acting in allyship can include educating
others about the LGBTQ rights movement,
staying up to date on the needs of the com-
munity, and being accountable in advocating

* ASK YOURSELF

Have you seen examples of
anti-LGBTQ name-calling, bullying
or harassment in your school?

How are students affected by
anti-LGBTQ bias at your school?

Did you see anti-LGBTQ bias in
school when you were a student?
How did it affect you?

for systemic changes that benefit those that
are disproportionately experiencing harm.

It is important for allies to demonstrate that
LGBTQ people are not alone as they work to
improve school climate, and to advocate when

it might not be safe for LGBTQ people to be

out or visible. LGBTQ-identified educators
and school leaders can also use this guide
: to develop action plans for active allyship for

LGBTAQ students. Any adult within the school

system can act in allyship with LGBTQ students

by listening to how LGBTQ students envision

safe and inclusive schools, and supporting their
: advocacy.

Note on Intersectionality: Sexuality and gender
identities are related to the other identities

that people hold and the privileges associated
: with those identities. Individuals in the LGBTQ
: community not only hold LGBTQ identities but
are also people of color, people with disabilities,

immigrants, and people experiencing home-
lessness. Being LGBTQ is not a monolithic

:experience and neither are the needs to ap-

proach multiple forms of oppression within the

: community. Allyship consists of challenging the

multiplicity of oppressive experiences, including
racism, genderism, sexism, ableism, etc. that

: these students experience.

Why act in allyship with

LGBTQ students?

Many students face bullying, harassment and
name-calling coming from bias and discrimina-

tion. However, LGBTQ students face particu-

larly hostile school environments and LGBTQ

students with a variety of oppressed identities

(e.g. LGBTQ students of color, LGBTQ students

with disabilities) experience hostile school
:environments on multiple fronts. It’s important
: that the adults in school systems take a proac-
tive approach to bullying and harassment by

: setting up a culture of LGBTQ visibility and

. support. Your allyship for these students can

make a difference in ways that will benefit the

: whole school climate.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG KNOW THE ISSUES
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In order to document the experiences of

LGBTQ students, GLSEN conducts the National

School Climate Survey every two years since
2001. From the survey we have learned that
anti-LGBTQ language fills classrooms, hall-
ways, school buses, gyms, and cafeterias. For
example, findings from this report found that
anti-LGBTQ harassment and discrimination
negatively affected the educational outcomes
of LGBTQ students, as well as their mental
health. The report also showed that compared
to their non-LGBTQ peers, LGBTQ students
are twice as likely to have missed school in the
past month due to feeling unsafe or uncomfort-
able. Having educators advocating for LGBTQ
students and amplifying their messages for safe
and inclusive schools, can take some of the
burden off LGBTQ youth.

In addition to the damage it can do to LGBTQ
students, anti-LGBTQ bias also affects other
members of the school community. Anti-LGBTQ
behavior creates a hostile environment and an
uncomfortable and unsafe space for everyone.
Homophobia and transphobia can be used to
stigmatize, silence and target people who are
perceived as LGBTQ, but are not. If certain
actions and behaviors are deemed to be

Anti-LGBTQ Bias
in School

Hector was an 11-year-
old, straight-identified,
middle school student who
just wanted to be himself. His classmates
thought he was feminine for a boy and began
teasing him and calling him names like
“faggot” and asking him why he was gay.
Hector told his mother about the bullying

at school and she immediately went to the

GLSEN

SAFE SPACE KIT

“1 have learned that

. harassment in schools is a
norm. Kids would scream
the term ‘faggot’ as they saw
me in the halls. None of the
teachers said a word, and
that is what scared me...
| don’t feel safe at my school
because I'm gay.”

— 11th Grade Student, North Carolina

stereotypically “queer,” students may avoid

: them for fear of being targeted with anti-LGBTQ
: behavior. For example, a student who identifies
. as male may avoid drama class or wearing
dresses and a student who identifies as female
: may decide not to wear ties or button-up shirts,
. just to avoid anti-LGBTQ bias. In order to

. protect all students and allow them the freedom

principal’s office to have something done.
Unfortunately, the school was not helpful
and refused to take any action stating “it’s

. just boys being boys.” The other students

. knew his mother had spoken to the principal,
which only increased the amount of bullying.
Halfway through the school year, Hector told
the school social worker that he couldn’t
endure the constant bullying and harassment
anymore, and that he was thinking about

. ending his life.






to reach their full potential, we must put an end
to anti-LGBTQ bias and behavior in schools.

Research shows that having supportive school
staff has a positive effect on a student’s educa-
tional experience. For example, LGBTQ stu-
dents with supportive educators were less likely
to miss school because of safety concerns and
had higher grade point averages than LGBTQ
students with no supportive educators. When
school staff effectively intervene in harassment,
LGBTQ students feel safer and are less likely to
miss school.

Having supportive educators and school lead-
ers can lead to students feeling safer and more
included in school, resulting in a more positive
and successful school experience. In addition
to supporting individual LGBTQ students, those
acting in allyship challenge anti-LGBTQ behav-
ior and work proactively to ensure safer, more
inclusive schools for all students.

Assessing Your
Personal Beliefs:
Dismantling internalized
homophobia and

transphobia

People aren’'t born prejudiced, so where does
it come from? From the moment we are born,

. we are inundated with messages, spoken and

unspoken, about different types of people. Often

we learn stereotypes and prejudices without

even realizing it. Some of these messages

may have been about ourselves and what we
are “supposed to” or “not supposed to” be. All

of us, LGBTQ and non-LGBTQ, have learned
messages about LGBTQ people. What were the
earliest messages you received about LGBTQ
people and where did they come from? Were

they positive, negative or neutral? Understanding
. the messages we receive can help us identify

our own beliefs and biases that we can then
challenge, helping us act in allyship better. Use

the “Check Yourself” Exercise below to explore
: your own biases.

Check Yourself: Understanding Your Own Beliefs

Anti-LGBTQ bias and heteronormativity is all around us. Yet we tend to overlook the subtle biases — the
anti-LGBTQ jokes, the exclusion of LGBTQ related-themes in curricula, even anti-LGBTQ name-calling.
Subtle or not, bias has the power to hurt and isolate people. Your work as an educator committed to safe
and supportive learning environments for all students includes recognizing and challenging your own
anti-LGBTQ bias and dismantling any internalized homophobia or transphobia that you may hold. Answer
each question honestly, and consider how these will affect your work in advocating for LGBTQ students.

1. If someone were to come out to you as
LGBTQ, what would your first thought be?

2. How would you feel if your child came
out to you as LGBTQ? How would you
feel if your mother, father or sibling
came out to you as LGBTQ?

3. Would you go to a physician whom you
thought was LGBTQ if they were of a
different gender than you?

What if they were the same gender as
you?

WWW.GLSEN.ORG KNOW THE ISSUES
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Check Yourself: Understanding Your Own Beliefs (cont.)

4. Have you ever been to an LGBTQ
social event, march or worship service?
Why or why not?

5. Can you think of three historical figures
who were lesbian, gay or bisexual?

6. Can you think of three historical figures
who were trans or nonbinary?

7. Have you ever laughed at or made a
joke at the expense of LGBTQ people?

8. Have you ever interrupted anti-LGBTQ
teasing or harassment? Why or why
not?

9. If you do not identify as LGBTQ, how
would you feel if people thought you
were LGBTQ?

10. If you do identify as LGBTQ, do you
share this identity with your stu-
dents? Their families? Colleagues?
Administrators? Why or why not?

Recognizing your own relationship to the LGBTQ community and personal beliefs about LGBTQ
identity is an important first step in building a practice of allyship for LGBTQ students. Based on your
responses to these questions, do you think you have internalized some of the anti-LGBTQ messages
pervasive in our world? How might your beliefs influence your actions as an educator of LGBTQ
students? The more aware we are of our own biases and their impact on our behavior, the easier it is
to ensure that our personal beliefs don’t undermine our efforts to support LGBTQ students.

Talking the Talk

We are a language-based society, and using
language is the best way that we learn about
new things. If you've ever seen a paint strip in
a hardware store, think about how many words
we use to describe shades of one color. And
that’s just paint, not people’s identities! Inuit
people have 50 different words for what we call
“snow.” That’s because it’s important to them.
We need language to talk about gender and
sexual identities because it helps people feel
seen and validated when they fall outside of
people’s assumptions.

In addition, having the language to describe
one’s gender identity outside of the gender
binary of “male/female” is liberating and creates
community among people experiencing gender
in similar ways. It can help people to find sexual

identities that expand outside of heteronorma-
tivity. We all have the right to have language to
define and better understand ourselves.

Language is forever developing. The beauty
of identity exploration is that folks are finding
new ways to put words to their experiences
every day. An important action to build allyship
is to continually educate yourself on new and
updated terms that LGBTQ students are using
to define themselves.

The terminology that follows is a way to set a
foundation for that knowledge. GLSEN con-
tinues to amplify current student experiences,
identity terminology, and voices through our

blog: www.glsen.org/blog.
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EXPRESSION

HOW YOU PRESENT YOURSELF

GLSEN and interACT developed the Gender
Triangle as an educational tool to highlight the
main components that revolve around gender
identity—our bodies, how we use our bodies to
express ourselves, and how the world around
us reads our bodies based on the cultural and
social codes of our time and place.

First, everyone has a BODY. And how our
bodies exist and develop over time is unique.
Although ideas about gender are often imposed
on our bodies—facial hair attributed to man-
hood or chest development to womanhood—
these physical traits do not always inform

our identity. Instead, assumptions are made
because of how others interpret our BODILY
CHARACTERISTICS. Upon birth, we are
typically categorized into one of two genders
(boy or girl) depending on how our genitals are
read. Throughout our lives, however, our many

WWW.GLSEN.ORG KNOW THE ISSUES

bodily characteristics work together to create a
unique path of development, causing some of
us to grow really tall, and others to remain short,
or some of us to grow hair under our armpits
and legs, while others remain bare. While this
development often happens on its own during
puberty, this change can also be administered

. through medicine, such as hormone replace-

ment therapy. Since our society often conflates
our bodies (or genitalia) with our gender identity,
it is critical that we allow space for people to
self-identify. Some may feel that their bodies are
distinct from their gender while others feel that

the two are interrelated. Our bodily development

is different, and so are our understandings of

the relationship between our bodies and our

genders. To learn about the different secondary
sex characteristics and how they affect our
bodies, study this Venn diagram from interACT:
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SECONDARY BODILY CHARACTERISTICS

facial hair

hormones

internal
or external
anatomy

fat
distribution

chromosomes

gonads
(testes or ovaries)

physical apperance

EXPRESSION is simply how we use our
body to present ourselves. This includes the
way that we talk, our mannerisms, how we
interact with others, our clothing, accessories,
hairstyles, what activities we enjoy, and much
more! However, you should never use a
person’s presentation to guess their gender
identity. This is important because our gender
expression is often guided by our feelings

of safety or acceptance. As a result, there
can often be incongruence between how we
identify on the inside and how we express
ourselves on the outside. Expression of our

gender or selves, whether that be through hair

styles, makeup, or personal fashion, changes
over the course of our lives.

ATTRIBUTION simply describes how we are

perceived by others. This can change depend-

ing on the people you’re around, the country

GLSEN' sarespacexir

you’re in, or even the time period in which you
live. For example, although we might consider
dresses to be stereotypically feminine, ancient
Romans wore “togas” regardless of their gen-
der, and a man wearing one would even be
perceived as masculine. Due to cultural and
generational differences, others’ interpreta-
tions of our bodies may not always match our
internal sense of self, which can also lead to
uncomfortable interactions. MISGENDERING
refers to the experience of being labeled by
others as a gender other than the one you are.
One way to acknowledge someone’s right to
self-identify is to ask for their PRONOUNS —
the small words used in replace of names
such as she/her, he/him, or they/them—rather
than making an assumption. If you acciden-
tally use the wrong pronouns for someone,
make sure to correct yourself going forward.






Finally, GENDER IDENTITY sits the core

of this triangle to demonstrate that gender
identity is how you see yourself at your core.
Everyone gets to decide their gender identity
for themselves and this designation can

also change over time. You may identify as

a girl or boy, woman or man, or you might
identify as agender, genderqueer, nonbinary,
or just as a person. You may choose not to
use any specific term to define your gender
identity, or you may use a term today that you
decide later doesn't fit. Everyone can identify
however feels right to them, and our gender
identity—as our internal sense of self—is
indisputable.

The more all of these aspects align, the more
you may identify as CISGENDER and experi-
ence CIS-PRIVILEGE. For example, if you
identify as a boy with bodily traits and expres-
sion that are attributed to masculinity within
your culture, then you experience privilege.
Cisgender people often get to move through
the world without thinking about gender, being
misgendered, or feeling limited by gender
stereotypes. Those who find tension among
these four components, mainly the world’s
perception of their body and their internal gen-
der identity, may identify as TRANSGENDER.
Transgender often serves as an umbrella term
for myriad other gender identities such as
nonbinary, genderqueer, or agender. In work-
ing with youth, it’s important to reflect on our
own gender and consider the privileges we
hold. Doing this is an important step towards
understanding the many parts of our students’
identities to ultimately create safer and more
affirming schools for all.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG SUPPORT

Self-Reflection

Now that we’ve covered the main compo-
nents that factor into gender identity, start
thinking about how this all relates to you as
an individual. The following questions will
encourage you to self-reflect on your own
gender in order to think critically about how
each of these elements manifest around
you:

Take a moment to think about your
gender identity. How do you identify
today? Is this the same as when you
were a child?

Self-expression can be really fun when
we give people the space to explore what
feels good to them. There are so many
different ways to present and express
ourselves to the world! What are some
ways you are expressing or showing your
gender today? How might this change on
a different day or in a different setting?

There are gender stereotypes that try to
tell us that people who identify as girls

or boys should act or dress a certain
way; i.e. “girls like dresses” or “boys
don’t cry.” These stereotypes can make
people feel bad for the things they like to
do, and erases people who may identify
or express themselves outside of the
binary of masculinity/femininity or gender
altogether. What are some ways that you
break gender stereotypes attached to the
norms attributed to your gender?

The attribution of our gender identity

by others is dependent on factors like
culture, language, and age. How does
attribution change depending on what
spaces you'’re in and who you’re around?
Can you think of moments when you may
have read or addressed someone in a
way that may not have honored how they
identified on the inside?

11
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How much LGBTQ-related terminology
do you already know? On the left is

a set of LGBTQ-related terms, on the
right are definitions of these terms.

To test your knowledge, select the
matching definition for each term.
Then check the LGBTQ Terminology
Review at the end of the guide for
more LGBTQ-related terms and
definitions.

“One of the greatest challenges

we face on a daily basis is not Which terms were you most
O S
what the students do to one fam|I|a.rIW|th.. Which were you
unfamiliar with?
another. In fact, sadly, it is what
. . What terms are you most
is said by some of my colleagues comfortable using? Are there
about the students.” any terms you are uncomfortable

using? Why?
— Alternative High School Educator, Ohio
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Sexual Orientation

Lesbian

Gender Identity

Gender Expression

Trans or transgender

Gay

Gender

Non-Conforming (GNC)

Asexual

Bisexual

Transphobia

Homophobia

Queer

Genderism

Intersex

Bodily characteristics

Nonbinary

Hatred or fear of those who are perceived to break or blur stereotypical gender roles,
often expressed as stereotyping, discrimination, harassment and/or violence.

The inner feelings of who a person is attracted to emotionally and/or physically, in
relation to their own gender identity. Some people may identify as “asexual,” “bisexual,”
“gay,” “lesbian,” “pansexual,” “queer,” “straight,” and many more.

» @

fed An umbrella term for people who do not identify with the binary of man/woman or
masculine/feminine. Nonbinary people are often included under the trans umbrella,
but not all may identify as transgender. Other genders that may be included under the
nonbinary umbrella are genderqueer, genderfluid, and agender.

E An umbrella term describing people whose gender identity does not match the gender
they were assigned at birth or by society.

The multiple ways in which a person may choose to communicate gender to oneself
and/or to others. This includes, but is not limited to, the way that we talk, our manner-
isms, how we interact with others, our clothing, accessories, hairstyles, and activities we
enjoy.

People who have any range of bodily characteristics that may not fit typical
expectations for “male” or “female” development.

A person who is emotionally and/or physically attracted to two or more genders, often
used to describe people attracted to “genders like theirs” and “other genders”

Physical traits that compose one’s body; i.e. primary characteristics such as
chromosomes, genitals, internal reproductive organs, hormone levels, and secondary
characteristics such as facial hair, chest development, etc.

Someone, who can be transgender or cisgender, who is generally attracted to someone
of the same gender.

” "

I A personal conception of oneself as may include, “man,” “woman,” “androgynous,”
“transgender,” “genderqueer” and many others, or a combination thereof.

A descriptive term and/or identity of a person who has a gender identity and/or
expression that does not conform to the traditional expectations of the gender they
were assigned at birth. People who identify in this way may or may not also identify as
“transgender.”

An umbrella term used to describe a sexual orientation, gender identity or gender
expression that does not conform to dominant societal norms. While it was historically
used as a derogatory slur, it has been reclaimed and used as an inclusive term among
many LGBTQ people today.

A person who does not experience sexual attraction, but may experience other
forms of attraction (e.g., intellectual, emotional). These individuals may also
identify as “bisexual,” “gay,” “lesbian,” “pansexual,” “queer,” “heterosexual,” and
many more.

The systematic belief that people need to conform to their gender assigned at birth in a
gender-binary system that includes only female and male.

E Someone, who can be transgender or cisgender, who generally considers themself a
woman or femme who is attracted to other women and/or femmes.

ﬂ The irrational fear of or aversion to homosexuality or lesbian, gay or bisexual people.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG
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ne of the key ways to act in allyship is to
support lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender,
and queer (LGBTQ) students in your school.
This section describes the dos and don’ts of

being an ally and four main ways you can be supportive:

Be visible.

Support students who come out to you.
Respond to anti-LGBTQ language and behaviors.
Support student clubs, such as GSAs/Gender and Sexuality Alliances.

Be Visible

One of the most important parts of acting in
allyship with LGBTQ students is demonstrating
your allyship through supportive actions. Even
if students don’t come to you directly, research
shows that just knowing that there is a sup-
portive educator at school can help LGBTQ
students feel better about being in school.
Making yourself visible can be as simple as
displaying a sticker. It can also be as involved
as demonstrating and modeling supportive
behaviors. Below you will find some sugges-
tions of how to make your allyship with LGBTQ
students visible.

MAKE YOUR SPACE VISIBLE

Make your classroom or office visible as a
safe space for LGBTQ students. This will help

students identify you as someone to come to for :
¢ tion about LGBTQ History Month in October,

: LGBTQ Pride Month in June or GLSEN’s Ally
: Week in September.

support and your space as one where they will
be safe.

Post Safe Space materials. Display Safe
Space stickers or posters in your classroom
or office. This will let students know that it is a
safe space and that you are supportive of
LGBTQ students.

Display LGBTQ support-
ive materials. Post support-
ive materials such as quotes
from famous LGBTQ icons,
information about the LGBTQ
community or materials from
LGBTAQ organizations. You
can find famous LGBTQ
icons to teach about during
national holidays and months
of celebration at www.glsen.
org/gsa. It is important to

GLSEN'  gisenorg

remember that LGBTQ icons can also be
:included throughout the year beyond Black

i History Month, Women’s History Month, Native
© Heritage Month, etc. You can also find more
LGBTQ historical moments at www.glsen.

: org/lgbtghistory. Along with signs for national
. holidays and months of celebration already

: in the classroom (e.g., Black History Month

or Women'’s History Month), display informa-

: MAKE YOURSELF VISIBLE

Making your allyship visible will allow students
to easily identify you as a supportive educator.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG SUPPORT
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Wear a visible marker. Wear a supportive
button or wristband or even a simple rainbow
bracelet. These will let students know that you
are a supportive ally without saying a word.

Let other educators know. In an ideal
world, all educators would be supportive allies
to LGBTQ students. But the reality is that you
may be one of only a few at your school. Let
other educators know that you are an ally and
share with them the important role they too can
play in supporting LGBTQ students.

LET YOUR ACTIONS SPEAK FOR YOU

Sometimes your actions can speak louder than
any button or poster. Here are simple actions you
can take that will let staff and students know you
are an ally.

Make no assumptions. When engaging
with students, or even other staff and parents,
do not assume you know their sexual orienta-
tion or gender identity. Don’t assume that
everyone is heterosexual or fits into your idea of
gender roles — be open to the variety of identi-
ties and expressions. In our society, students
constantly receive the message that everyone
is supposed to be straight. Show students that
you understand there is no one way a person
“should” be.

Use inclusive language. Through casual
conversation and during classroom time, make
sure the language you are using is inclusive of
all people. When referring to people in general,
try using words like “partner” instead of “boy-
friend/girlfriend” or “husband/wife,” and avoid
gendered pronouns, using “they” instead of “he/
she.” Using inclusive language will help LGBTQ
students feel more comfortable being themselves
and coming to you for support.

Respond to anti-LGBTQ behavior.
Responding to anti-LGBTQ behavior when it oc-
curs or when you hear about it will let students
know that you do not tolerate homophobia or
transphobia. It sends a strong message that

: anti-LGBTQ behavior is not acceptable to you
:and not allowed in your school.

Support Students When
. They Come Out
. to You

© As an ally, LGBTQ students may come to you

: for support, comfort or guidance. You may

. encounter a situation where a student comes

: out or reveals their sexual orientation or gender
identity to you. You may be the first or only

: person an LGBTQ student comes out to. It is

: important that you support the student in a

: constructive way. Keep in mind that the student
may be completely comfortable with their sexual
: orientation or gender identity and may not need
. help dealing with it or may not be in need of any
. support. It may be that the student just wanted
to tell someone, or just simply to tell you so you
: might know them better. Below you will find

: more information on the coming out process

: and how you can be a supportive ally when

© students come out to you.

WHAT DOES “COMING OUT” MEAN?

Simply put, coming out is a means to publicly

: declare one’s identity, whether to a person in

¢ private or a group of people. In our society most
. people are generally presumed to be hetero-
sexual, so there is usually no need for a hetero-
: sexual person to make a statement to others

¢ that discloses their sexual orientation. Similarly,
. many people feel that their gender identity is
aligned with the gender they were assigned at

: birth or by society, and therefore never have

. to disclose their gender to the people around

. them.

To come out is to take a risk by sharing one’s

: identity, sometimes to one person in conversa-
: tion, sometimes to a group or in a public setting.
. The actual act of coming out can be as simple

: as saying “I'm gay/lesbian/bisexual/transgen-

: der,” but it can be a difficult and emotional
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Anti-LGBTQ Bias
in School

Renisha was a 15-year-
old freshman who had
just started at the school
where her older brother Michael was a junior.
Renisha decided that at this new school,
she was going to be herself and not hide
that she’s a lesbian as she did in junior high.
Michael’s friends had begun to make fun of
his little sister and Michael always defended
her, telling his friends “leave her alone,
she’s just being herself.” Michael’s friends

process for an LGBTQ student to go through,
which is why it is so important for a student to
have support. One positive aspect of coming
out is not having to hide who you are anymore.
However, there can be dangers that come with
revealing yourself. A student who comes out
may be open to more anti-LGBTQ name-calling,
bullying and harassment, yet they may also feel
more comfortable and free to be themselves.
One of the most important ways you can act in
allyship with an LGBTQ student is to be there
for them in a safe, respectful and helpful way.

“[Reporting] causes more
problems. Teachers and staff
do not know how to handle the
problem anonymously.”

— Student, Grade Not Reported, Texas

. continued to tease Renisha calling her “dyke”
from across the lunchroom and defacing her

locker with anti-LGBTQ language. Michael

decided that this had gone too far and
demanded his friends leave his little sister
alone. One of his friends started to tease

Michael, asking him if “being queer runs

in the family.” The words had barely made
it out of the boy’s mouth before Michael

punched him. The other friends backed off

and stopped the teasing, but Michael was
: suspended from school for a week and

kicked off the basketball team for fighting.

: SHOULD SCHOOL STAFF BE CAREFUL
. OF DISCLOSING A STUDENT’S SEXUAL
. ORIENTATION OR GENDER IDENTITY

. TO OTHERS?

Absolutely. Information regarding a student’s

: sexual orientation and gender identity is

: highly sensitive and must be handled with the
utmost discretion and professionalism and be

: respectful of student privacy in discussing these
 matters.

In contrast to coming out, when a person

chooses to disclose their sexual orientation or
: gender identity, “outing” occurs when someone
. else tells others that a particular individual is

LGBTQ without that person’s permission. We

often don’t know what someone’s beliefs are or
: reactions might be, and outing someone may

¢ have large repercussions for students. Although
Dt may be hard to believe, there are students

: whose emotional and physical safety were

: jeopardized when school staff outed them to

. other students and even family members.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG SUPPORT
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When a Student Comes Out to You...

When a student comes out to you and tells you they are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgen-
der, or queer (LGBTQ) your initial response is important. The student has likely spent time
in advance thinking about whether or not to tell you, and when and how to tell you. Here
are some tips to help you support them.

Offer support but don’t assume a
student needs any help. The student may
be completely comfortable with their sexual
orientation or gender identity and may not
need help dealing with it or be in need of
any support. It may be that the student just
wanted to tell someone, or just simply to tell
you so you might know them better. Offer
and be available to support your students as
they come out to others.

Be a role model of acceptance.
Always model good behavior by using
inclusive language and setting an accepting
environment by not making assumptions
about people’s sexual orientation or gender
identity. Addressing other’s (adults and
students) biased language and addressing
stereotypes and myths about lesbian, gay,
bisexual, transgender, and queer (LGBTQ)
people also positions you as a positive
role model. By demonstrating that you are
respectful of LGBTQ people and intolerant
of homophobia and transphobia, LGBTQ
students are more likely to see you as a
supportive educator.

Appreciate the student’s courage.
There is often a risk in telling someone
something personal, especially sharing
for the first time one’s sexual orientation
or gender identity, when it is generally not
considered the norm. Consider someone’s
coming out a gift and thank them for giv-
ing that gift to you. Sharing this personal

:information with you means that the student
: respects and trusts you.

Listen, listen, listen. One of the best

: ways to support a student is to hear them

: out and let the student know you are there

: to listen. Coming out is a long process, and
chances are you'll be approached again to

i discuss this process, the challenges and the
i joys of being out at school.

Assure and respect confidentiality.

The student told you and may or may not

i be ready to tell others. Let the student know
i that the conversation is confidential and

i that you won't share the information with

: anyone else, unless they ask for your help.

If they want others to know, doing it in their

own way with their own timing is important.

Respect their privacy.

Ask questions that demonstrate

understanding, acceptance and
: compassion. Some suggestions are:

: — Have you been able to tell anyone else?

— Has this been a secret you have had

to keep from others or have you told
other people?

i — Do you feel safe in school? Supported by

the adults in your life?

— Do you need any help of any kind?
Resources or someone to listen?

— Have | ever offended you unknowingly?
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...and Tells You They Are Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,

Remember that the student has not
changed. They are still the same person
you knew before the disclosure; you just
have more information about them, which
might improve your relationship. Let the
student know that you feel the same way
about them as you always have and that
they are still the same person. If you are
shocked, try not to let the surprise lead you
to view or treat the student any differently.

Challenge traditional norms. You
may need to consider your own beliefs
about sexual orientation, gender identity
and gender roles. Do not expect people to
conform to societal norms about gender or
sexual orientation.

Be prepared to give a referral. Use
GLSEN’s Coming Out Resource. If
students ask for your advice on coming out
to others, you can use this resource as a
reference.

SOME ADDITIONAL THINGS TO KEEP
IN MIND WHEN A STUDENT COMES
OUT TO YOU AS TRANSGENDER:

Validate the person’s gender identity
and expression. It is important to use the
pronoun and name that the person requests
— this is showing respect. In other words,
refer to the student using the pronouns that
best honor them, rather than assuming what
their pronouns are. Or use gender neutral
language. Never use the word “it” when
referring to a person, to do so is insulting
and disrespectful.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG SUPPORT

Transgender, or Queer

Remember that gender identity
is separate from sexual orientation.
Knowing someone is transgender does not
provide you with any information about their

: sexual orientation.

WHAT NOT TO SAY WHEN SOMEONE

COMES OUT TO YOU:

“l knew it!” This makes the disclosure
about you and not the student, and you
might have been making an assumption
based on stereotypes.

“Are you sure?” “You’re just con-

fused.” “It’s just a phase — it will pass.”
¢ This suggests that the student doesn’t know
: who they are.

“You just haven’t found a good woman

. yet” said to a presumably male student
: or “a good man yet” said to a presum-
ably female student. This assumes that

¢ everyone is straight or should be.

“Shhh, don’t tell anyone.” This implies

that there is something wrong and that being

LGBTQ must be kept hidden. If you have
real reason to believe that disclosing this
information will cause the student harm,

then make it clear that is your concern. Say,

“Thanks for telling me. We should talk about
how tolerant our school and community is.

You may want to consider how this may

affect your decision about who to come

: outto.”

“You can’t be gay — you’ve had
relationships with people of the opposite

. sex.” This refers only to behavior, while
i sexual orientation is about inner feelings.
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Respond to
Anti-LGBTQ Language
and Behavior

Anti-LGBTQ behavior comes in all shapes and
sizes: biased language, name-calling, harass-
ment and even physical assault. GLSEN’s
National School Climate Survey consistently
finds that many LGBTQ students regularly hear

homophobic slurs, such as “faggot” or “dyke,” at

school, and most students have been verbally
or physically harassed in school. Youth who
regularly experience harassment can suffer

from low self-esteem, high rates of absenteeism

and low academic achievement. Educators can
make a difference by intervening in anti-LGBTQ
name-calling, bullying and harassment every
time they witness it. Taking action when you
see it occur can help create a safe space for all
students. Intervening on the spot will also serve
as a teachable moment to let other students
know that anti-LGBTQ behavior will not be
tolerated. One of the most effective ways you
can act in allyship is respond to anti-LGBTQ
behavior.

HOW TO INTERVENE IN NAME-CALLING,
BULLYING AND HARASSMENT

Follow these steps when you witness anti-
LGBTQ name-calling, bullying or harassment.

1. Address Name-Calling, Bullying or
Harassment Immediately.

Concentrate on stopping the behavior in that
moment. Sometimes it’s a simple response
to hearing a derogatory term like, “That
language is unacceptable in this classroom.”
Make sure that everyone can hear you. Never
miss the opportunity to interrupt the behavior.
Remember: no action is an action — if an
incident is overlooked or not addressed it can
imply acceptance and approval.

: 2. Name the Behavior.

Describe what you saw and label the behavior.

“I heard you use the word faggot and that is
: derogatory and is considered name-calling.
¢ That language is unacceptable.”

3. Use the Teachable Moment
. (or Create One).

Make sure to educate after stopping the
behavior. Decide if you are going to educate
in the moment or later, and if it will be publicly

. or privately. If you decide to educate later you

will need to create the teachable moment. You
:can then take this opportunity to teach one

. class, the entire grade, or whole school about

language and behaviors that are acceptable

and those that are not. Be cautious about using
: the student that experienced the bullying or

harassment as an example. Center or focus the

teachable moment around the behaviors not the
: specific students involved.

D 4. Support the Targeted Student.

Support the student who has been the target

. of the name-calling, bullying or harassment.

Do not make assumptions about what the

student is experiencing. Ask the student what
. they need or want. You will have to decide
whether to do this in the moment or later, and if

it will be publicly or privately. Suggest that the

student visit with a counselor only if the student

requests extra support.

: 5. Hold Students Accountable.

Check school policy and impose appropriate

: consequences. Make sure disciplinary actions
: are evenly applied across all types of name-

: calling, bullying and harassment.

RESPONDING TO UNINTENTIONAL ANTI-
LGBTQ LANGUAGE

¢ Almost all LGBTQ students regularly hear the
word “gay” used in a negative way at school.
: Though many downplay the impact of expres-
. sions like, “That’s so gay” because they have

become such a common part of the vernacular
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and are often not intended to inflict harm,

most LGBTQ students say that hearing “gay”
or “queer” used in a negative manner causes
them to feel bothered or distressed. Especially
because these expressions are so pervasive in
our schools, it is critical that educators treat this
like all other types of anti-LGBTQ language and
address it.

Not all students may understand why this
language is offensive, so you may need to
educate the students on why this is anti-LGBTQ
language. For example, ask them why they
would use “gay” to mean that something is bad
or boring. Let them know that it is offensive and
hurtful to LGBTQ people when they use “gay”
to describe something as undesirable. When

challenged on using this type of language, a
: common response from students and adults is
: that they did not mean “gay” to mean homosex-

ual. They may say that it’s just an expression

and they don’t mean any harm by it. The chart

below suggests some strategies for dealing with

these types of comments, including the benefits
¢ and challenges for each strategies.

For free public service announcements, lesson
plans, discussion guides and other resources

that address anti-LGBTQ language, visit
: www.glsen.org.

POSSIBLE RESPONSES TO “THAT’S SO GAY”

RESPONSES BENEFITS
“What do you mean
by that?”

“How do you think a gay
person might feel?”
the solution.

“Do you say that as
a compliment?”

Doesn’t dismiss it.

Puts responsibility on the
student to come up with

Asking this rhetorical
question in a non-
accusatory tone may
lighten things up enough

CHALLENGES

Students might not be
forthcoming.

Student may not
say anything.

Students may just laugh
off your question, or
reiterate that they’re
“Just joking.”

for your students to
shake their heads and

admit, “No.”

“So the connotations are
negative?” or “So maybe
it’s not a good thing?”

Not accusatory.
Could open up the
floor for discussion.

There’s always the chance
that students will still be
reluctant to speak up.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG SUPPORT
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Support Student Clubs

For many LGBTQ students, student clubs that
address LGBTQ student issues (commonly
called Gender and Sexuality Alliances or GSAs)
offer critical support. These clubs are student-
led, usually at the high school or middle school
level, and work to address anti-LGBTQ name-
calling, bullying and harassment in their schools
and promote respect for all students. The
existence of these clubs can make schools feel
safer and more welcoming for LGBTQ students.
GLSEN’s National School Climate Survey

has found that compared to LGBTQ students
without a GSA, students in schools with a GSA
or similar student club:

Reported hearing fewer homophobic remarks.

Experienced less harassment and assault
because of their sexual orientation and gender
expression.

Were more likely to report incidents of
harassment and assault.

Were less likely to feel unsafe because of
their sexual orientation or gender expression.

Were less likely to miss school because of
safety concerns.

Reported a greater sense of belonging to
their school community.

GLSEN' sarespacexir

Only slightly more than half
(53.3%) of students reported
having a Gender and Sexuality
Alliance (GSA) or similar
student club at their school.

— 2017 National School Climate Survey

GSAs, like all student clubs, must have a faculty

: advisor. Serving as the advisor for your school’s

GSA is one important way that you can act
in allyship to LGBTQ students. Not only does
being an advisor allow you to help the efforts of

your GSA, it makes your allyship more visible to
¢ all members of your school community, making

it easier for LGBTQ students to identify sup-
portive school staff.

As an ally, you may also need to advocate for
: the rights of students to establish a GSA in their
¢ school. Although some opponents of GSAs

have attempted to restrict the existence of or

access to these clubs, the federal Equal Access
¢ Act of 1984 requires public schools to allow

GSAs to exist alongside other non-curricular

student clubs.

Go to www.glsen.org/gsa to find activities and
planning tools for your GSA.
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Dos and Don’ts of Acting in Allyship With LGBTQ Students

DO...

Listen. One of the simplest yet most
important ways to act in allyship is to listen.
Like all students, LGBTQ students need to
feel comfortable expressing themselves. If a
student comes to talk to you about being ha-
rassed, feeling excluded or just about their
life in general, keep in mind that you may be
the only person they feel safe speaking to.
Be there to listen.

Respect confidentiality. Effective allies
will respect their students’ confidentiality
and privacy. Someone who is coming out
may not want everyone to know. Assume
that the person only told you and just wants
you to know, unless they indicate otherwise.
Informing others can create an unsafe
environment for the student.

Be conscious of your biases. Effective
allies acknowledge how homophobia,
transphobia and heterosexism may affect
their efforts to act in allyship to LGBTQ

people. They continuously work to recognize

and challenge their own biases.

Seek out knowledge. Effective allies
periodically brush up on LGBTQ-related
language and current issues facing the
LGBTQ community.

Be a resource. Effective allyship
includes knowing when and how to refer
students to outside help. The last section of
this guide includes a list of LGBTQ-related
resources and referral sources for LGBTQ
youth.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG SUPPORT

DON'T...

Think you have all the answers. Do
not feel you must always have the answers.
If you are faced with a problem you don’t
know how to solve, let the student know you
will look into the subject to try and find an
answer. Sometimes the best thing for you
to do is to refer the student to an outside
source that may be able to help them. The
last section of this guide includes a list
of LGBTQ-related resources and referral
sources for LGBTQ youth.

Make unrealistic promises. Be careful
not to promise something you may not be
able to deliver. This can damage the rela-

tionship you have with the student as an ally.

Make assumptions. It is important to
avoid making assumptions and perpetuat-
ing stereotypes. These can be extremely
offensive and may turn a student away from
you. It is also important to avoid assuming
you know what the student needs. Be sure
to listen to your student and ask how you
can support them.

ASK YOURSELF *

Which of these strategies are you
most likely to use in your school?

Are there other strategies that you
have used when intervening in
anti-LGBTQ language, harassment
and bullying in your school?
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discusses how to:

Teach students to respect others.

s an ally, you have the opportunity to educate
about anti-LGBTQ bias, its effects and ways
to combat it in order to create safer, more
welcoming school environments. This section

Include positive representations of LGBTQ people, history and

events into your curriculum.

Engage other school staff about anti-LGBTQ bias and ways to

create safer schools.

Teach Respect

There are many ways to teach students the
importance of respecting all people, regardless
of their sexual orientation, gender identity or
gender expression. Your school could imple-
ment a comprehensive school-wide program
like GLSEN’s No Name-Calling Week® Or,
you may incorporate individual lessons into
your curriculum or group activities. Here are a
few resources that educators can use to teach
respect and prevent harassment and bullying
among students.

“It’'s amazing how enthralled
students will get when there
are actual people they can
connect with, representing
the issues around diversity,
discrimination, etc.”

— School Counselor, Ohio

WWW.GLSEN.ORG EDUCATE

Changing the Game: The GLSEN Sports

. Project. Building safe spaces in athletic and

. physical education programs is an equally
important part of creating a safe and respectful
:environment in your school. GLSEN’s Sports

. Project assists schools in creating athletic

: and physical education climates based on the
principles of respect, safety and equal access

: for all. Download and share resources and

: guidelines with your school’s physical educa-

. tion teachers and coaches to help create safe
sports spaces where nhame-calling and bullying
:are not tolerated and where everyone can enjoy
. the game. For more information, visit

: www.glsen.org/sports.

GLSEN’s No Name-Calling Week®

: Lesson Plans. GLSEN’s No Name-Calling

: Week® is an annual week of educational

: activities aimed at ending name-calling of all

: kinds and providing schools with the tools and
inspiration to launch an ongoing dialogue about
¢ ways to eliminate bullying in their communities.

¢ Nevertheless, the accompanying lesson plans

. are available year-round and can be used at any
time. For information about the program and free
: elementary- and secondary-level lesson plans,

: visit www.glsen.org/nncw.
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Make your Curriculum
LGBTQ Inclusive

LGBTQ-inclusive curriculum that provides
positive representations of LGBTQ people,
history and events helps to create a tone of
acceptance of LGBTQ people and increase
awareness of LGBTQ-related issues, resulting
in a more supportive environment for LGBTQ
students. GLSEN’s National School Climate
Survey consistently finds that students with
inclusive LGBTQ curriculum in their schools
have a greater sense of belonging to their
school community, hear fewer homophobic and
transphobic remarks and are less likely to be
victimized or feel unsafe at school than those
without inclusive curriculum.

There are many ways to include positive repre-
sentations of LGBTQ people, history and events
in your curriculum. Here are a few suggestions.

Include LGBTQ history. Raise the visibility

of LGBTQ people and communities by providing

students with concrete examples of LGBTQ
people in history and LGBTQ-related historical
events. For example, when teaching about the
Holocaust or about civil rights movements, be
sure to include the persecution, struggles and
successes of the LGBTQ community. You can
show documentary films, such as Out of the
Past or Gay Pioneers, or you can use GLSEN’s
When Did It Happen: LGBTQ History Lesson
or Unheard Voices to teach about important
leaders and events in LGBTQ history. For
resources, visit www.glsen.org/lgbtghistory.

Include diverse families. Whenever pos-
sible, include examples of diverse families, in-
cluding same-sex couples and LGBTQ parents,
whenever referencing families in the classroom.
Providing students with these examples can

help LGBTQ students and students with LGBTQ

family members feel included in the classroom.

GLSEN' sarespacexir

Use LGBTQ-inclusive literature. It is impor-

: tant for students to see themselves reflected in
: the school curriculum. Using LGBTQ inclusive

literature will help create a welcoming space for
LGBTQ students, as well as promote respect

. and acceptance among all students. Be sure
: to use books that feature positive and diverse

representations of LGBTQ characters. You can

find appropriate books for your curriculum and

literature guides at www.glsen.org/Igbtghistory.

Celebrate LGBTQ events. Celebrating
LGBTQ events can help LGBTQ students feel
included in the school. Promote LGBTQ events

throughout the school as you would any other
cultural celebration. Celebrate LGBTQ History

Month in October and LGBTQ Pride Month in

June by displaying signs, alerting students and

recognizing the struggles, contributions and

victories of the LGBTQ community.

Only a small percentage
(19.8%) of LGBTQ students
were taught positive
representations of LGBTQ
people, history or events in
their schools. Yet in schools
with inclusive curriculum,
LGBTQ students were more
likely to report that their
classmates were somewhat
or very accepting of LGBTQ
people than students in schools
without (67.6% vs. 36.0%).

— 2017 National School Climate Survey
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Engage School Staff

Creating safe schools for all students, regard-
less of sexual orientation, gender identity or
gender expression can be a difficult task.
There is no reason to go it alone — help other
educators become supportive allies for LGBTQ
students. Here are some simple ways you can
share your commitment to ensure safe schools
and your knowledge about the issues with
other educators.

Be a role model for other educators. Let
your actions inform others. Use the appropriate
terms such as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgen-
der, queer or LGBTQ and correct people when
you hear incorrect or derogatory language.
Use gender-neutral pronouns and LGBTQ-
inclusive language in school. Intervene when
anti-LGBTQ behavior occurs and show other
educators how to advocate for changes within
the school.

Discuss with others. In the hallways,
during lunch or whenever you have a moment,
share information with other educators. Tell
them about experiences of LGBTQ students
in school, some of the anti-LGBTQ behavior
incidents you have responded to or about the
changes in the school you would like to see.
Letting other educators know about the con-
crete things they can do may help make acting
in allyship a realistic option for them. For more
ideas, talk with fellow educators about how they

are including LGBTQ people, history and events

in their curriculum. To learn what others are do-
ing and share your own ideas, join the Educator
Forum on Facebook or register to receive
updates as part of the Educator’s Network at
www.glsen.org/educator.

Distribute information. Photocopy select
pages from this guide (e.g., Responding to
Anti-LGBTQ Language and Behavior or When
a Student Comes Out to You) and give them
to school staff at meetings, post them in a staff

lounge or put them in the mailboxes of all staff.

This will provide a non-threatening opportunity
for other educators to learn about the issues
: and what they can do to make a difference.

Advocate for professional development.

. Work with your principal or administrator to ob-

: tain training for staff on the school experiences

: of LGBTQ students and anti-LGBTQ bullying

¢ and harassment. Find community organizations
:that can provide training resources to your

: school, such as an LGBTQ community center

: oralocal GLSEN Chapter.

Give a presentation to school staff. If
possible, secure some time during a school

. staff meeting to discuss the issue of anti-

LGBTQ name-calling, bullying and harassment.
Provide staff with information about the problem

and ideas for how to handle it. Use the provided
outline for a sample 20-minute presentation to

help you plan your presentation.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG EDUCATE

27



http://www.glsen.org

http://www.glsen.org/educator



28

Sample 20-Minute Presentation to School Staff

This is a sample outline for a 20-minute presentation to school staff. With a

short amount of time, you have to be sure to share key information that will get other
educators interested in taking action to ensure a safe school environment for all
students. There are two main points of information you should focus on during your
short presentation: 1) The reasons why educators need to take action; 2) Concrete
ways educators can respond to anti-LGBTQ behavior in the school. You can use this
sample presentation outline to help focus your message and make the most of your

brief presentation.

INTRODUCTION

Let staff know that the purpose of this
presentation is to inform them of the experi-
ences of lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender,
and queer (LGBTQ) students in schools,
discuss ways to intervene when anti-LGBTQ
behavior occurs and things they can do to
create a safe school environment. Share
why this is important to you personally; why
you find it so critical to combat anti-LGBTQ
behavior and ensure LGBTQ students feel
safe and welcome in your school.

THE EXPERIENCES OF LGBTQ
STUDENTS IN SCHOOL

Share information about the experiences
of LGBTQ students in school. Use statistics
from research, such as GLSEN’s National
School Climate Survey (you can download
all of GLSEN’s research reports at
www.glsen.org/research).

You may want to write out three to four
key statistics on flipchart paper or display on
a smartboard. These could include the fol-
lowing from GLSEN’s 2017 National School
Climate Survey:

70.1% of LGBTQ students were verbally
harassed at school because of their
sexual orientation; 59.1% were harassed
because of their gender expression
(acting “too masculine” or “too feminine”).

The average grade point average (GPA)
for LGBTQ students who were frequently
harassed because of their sexual orienta-
tion or gender expression was signifi-
cantly lower than that of LGBTQ students
experiencing less harassment.

Over one third (34.9%) of LGBTQ stu-
dents reported missing at least one full
day of school in the past month because
they felt uncomfortable or unsafe at
school.

Most LGBTQ students who are harassed
or assaulted in school did not report the
incident to school staff, most commonly
because they doubted that effective
intervention would occur or feared the
situation could become worse if reported.

GLSEN' s:respacexir
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Give examples of the anti-LGBTQ
behavior you have witnessed or heard
about in your school.

Lead the staff in a brief discussion using
these questions:

— Were you surprised by any of
the information?

— Have you witnessed anti-LGBTQ
name-calling, bullying and harass-
ment in the school?

RESPONDING TO ANTI-LGBTQ
BEHAVIOR

Tell staff that one of the best ways to
make LGBTQ students feel safer and more
comfortable at school is to directly intervene
in anti-LGBTQ behavior.

Provide staff with Responding to Anti-
LGBTQ Language and Behavior section
from this guide (page 16—17).

Give staff a couple of minutes to review
the handout silently, or have participants
take turns reading it aloud.

Lead the participants in a discussion
using these questions:

— Would these tactics work in our
school? Why or why not?

— What are some other ways you can
respond to anti-LGBTQ behavior in
the school?

. CLOSING

Provide examples of other things staff can

do to create a safe environment for LGBTQ
: students, such as including LGBTQ people,

history and events in their curriculum and

supporting a Gender and Sexuality Alliance
¢ student club.

Follow-up with educators and provide

them with copies of important information
. from the Safe Space Kit. Support them in
. their efforts to act in allyship, and let them

know how they can support you. Be sure to

tell them that they can download the Safe

Space Kit at www.glsen.org/safespace.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG EDUCATE
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key role of an ally is to use the power
and influence they have as an educator
to advocate for the rights of LGBTQ
students and ensure safe schools for all.

In this section, we discuss three measures that you can

advocate for in your school:

Assessment of your school’s climate, policies and practices.

Implementation of comprehensive anti-bullying/harassment policies.

Promotion of non-discriminatory policies and practices.

This section also provides some tips for how to talk to your principal,
district administration or school board to advocate for these measures.

Assess your School

The first step in advocating for changes in your
school is to assess the current state of your
school. This will help you focus your efforts
and identify areas for improvement. You can
examine your school in-depth by learning
about people’s experiences in your school

and examining your school’s existing policies,
practices and resources.

ASSESS YOUR SCHOOL'S CLIMATE

You can do this by surveying members of your
school community — students, staff and par-
ents. Your survey should include questions that
ask about the frequency of biased language,
harassment and assault, as well as the level of
intervention by educators. GLSEN has a tool,
the Local School Climate Survey (LSCS), which

was designed to help educators and community

members conduct a survey to assess the cli-
mate of their school or community. Conducting
the LSCS can give you detailed data to use

: when advocating for changes. There are two
versions of the LSCS, one to be conducted in
:asingle school and one to be conducted with
. several schools or a community. The LSCS

: provides you with a sample participant letter,
tips for conducting a LSCS and a survey form.
: All materials can be downloaded at

: www.glsen.org/Iscs for free.

. ASSESS YOUR SCHOOL'S POLICIES
. AND PRACTICES

¢ Understanding how inclusive your school is of

. LGBTQ students, families and issues is key to
creating a plan of action to ensuring your school
: is safe and welcoming for all students. To as-

: sess your school’s policies and practices, note

. which items in the LGBTQ-Inclusive School
Checklist applies to your school.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADVOCATE
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LGBTQ-Inclusive School Checklist

POLICIES & PROCEDURES : COURSE CONTENT

Q Fairly enforced non-discrimination and : O Health and sexuality education that is
anti-bullying/harassment policies that inclusive of all sexual orientations and
explicitly protect LGBTQ students. : gender identities.

4 School forms and applications that Q Curriculum that regularly includes
are inclusive of all identities and : information about LGBTQ people, history
family structures. . and events.

4 A gender-neutral dress code, including Q Library resources and displays that
for yearbook photos. : are inclusive of LGBTQ people, history

: and issues.

O Gender-neutral and/or private bathrooms
and changing areas.

................................................................ CO_CURRICU LAR ACTIVITIES

SCHOOL EVENTS & CELEBRATIONS : Qa Athletic.teams. and events that are safe
: for and inclusive of LGBTQ students.

4 School dances and proms that are safe
for and inclusive of LGBTQ students. O GSA’s and other student clubs that
; combat name-calling, bullying

4 Proms, homecoming and athletic events and harassment.

that allow for gender-neutral alternatives  :
to “King” and “Queen’” : Q School publications that cover LGBTQ

. . ) ) people and issues.
Q Valentine’s Day celebrations inclusive of

LGBTQ and non-coupled students.

A Observations of Mother’s Day
and Father’s Day that affirm all
family structures.

Once you have assessed your school’s policies and practices, you should decide which areas
of your school need the most work. Collaborate with other educators and administrators to
implement realistic changes within the school.

GLSEN' s:respacexir






Implement
Comprehensive
Anti-Bullying/
Harassment Policies

One major step that schools can take to

affirm their support for all students’ safety is
the implementation and enforcement of anti-
bullying or harassment policies. These policies
can promote a better school climate for LGBTQ
students when sexual orientation, gender
identity and gender expression are explicitly
addressed. School officials may not recognize
that anti-LGBTQ harassment and bullying are
unacceptable behaviors, or may not respond
to the problem due to prejudice or community
pressure without the cover of a specific policy.
Comprehensive policies that specifically enu-
merate sexual orientation, gender identity and
gender expression as protected characteristics
removes all doubt that LGBTQ students, and
all students, are protected from anti-LGBTQ
bullying and harassment in school.

Some argue that generic anti-bullying/harass-
ment policies without enumerated categories
are just as effective as comprehensive ones.
Students’ experiences indicate otherwise.
LGBTQ students from schools with a generic
policy experience similar harassment levels

as students from schools with no policies at all
whereas students from schools with a compre-
hensive policy that include sexual orientation,
gender identity and gender expression report a

less hostile and more supportive school climate.

As an ally, you should find out whether your
school or school district has a comprehensive
anti-bullying/harassment policy that includes
protections based on sexual orientation, gender
identity and gender expression. If it does not,
advocate with your principal, school board or
district administration to adopt one that does.

If your school already has a comprehensive

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADVOCATE

policy, be sure that all members of the school

community are regularly notified of the policy
and consistently implement it. Often times, a
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policy may exist but students are not aware of
it and may not know that they are protected. If

students are not aware of the policy or how to

make a report of bullying or harassment, then

the policy will not be effective.

For more information about safe school laws

and policies, including model policies, visit
: www.glsen.org/modelpolicies.

Promote Non-
Discriminatory
Policies and Practices

Homophobia, transphobia and heterosexism

: can manifest themselves in school policies and

practices, creating an unwelcoming, unsafe

and hostile environment for LGBTQ students.

Policies and practices that exclude LGBTQ

students, or force them to conform to what is
. considered by others as “normal” can alienate

LGBTAQ students from the school community.

. There are many ways to make your school’s

policies and practices LGBTQ-inclusive.

Non-discrimination policy. Many schools
have a non-discrimination policy that prohibits

discrimination based on sexual orientation and
: gender identity or expression. Such policies

¢ typically apply to all activities that take place

¢ within the school and they can apply to both
:school personnel and students. Check to see

if your school has such a policy and if not,

advocate for the adoption of one.

Sports activities. Work with school

coaches, and physical education teachers
: to combat anti-LGBTQ language among
¢ students and staff, respond when anti-LGBTQ

behavior occurs and create a safe environment

© within school athletics for LGBTQ students.

Homophobia and heterosexism are often
heavily present on the fields, in the gym, in
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locker rooms and at sporting events, and sports
activities can be one of the most unwelcoming
school programs for LGBTQ students. Some
LGBTQ students, facing harassment or assault,
choose to avoid the athletics program altogeth-
er. Those LGBTQ athletes that do participate
may learn to feel shame and self-hatred and
hide their identities at great psychological cost.
For more information about making K—12 sports
and physical education inclusive and safe for
all, visit www.glsen.org/sports.

School uniforms and dress codes. Work
to ensure that school uniforms or dress codes
are gender-neutral, with the same set of rules
and expectations for all students, regardless
of gender. School uniforms and dress codes
that require students to wear clothing deemed
appropriate for their gender can restrict stu-
dents’ gender identity and gender expression,
resulting in students feeling uncomfortable or
unwelcome in their own school community.

School events. Work to ensure that school
events are inclusive of queer and trans couples.
School events, such as proms, that limit
student’s guest/date choices to those of another
gender can make students feel excluded and
unwelcome. For example, if a prom limits a
student’s guest choices to someone of another
gender it may make students feel excluded and
unwelcome. This may particularly be a problem
in cases when they are explicitly told they
cannot bring their same-gender guest or are
refused entry because of their guest’s gender.

Anti-LGBTQ Bias in
School

Vincent was an out,
gay-identified senior

at his town'’s only high
school. Although he had
occasionally experienced

anti-gay name-calling and bullying in the school,

he was well-liked and felt fairly comfortable
at school. The senior prom was approaching
and Vincent was worried that he wouldn't be

GLSEN' sarespacexir

School libraries. Work with school librar-
ians to include LGBTQ-themed literature in
the school library collection. Go to www.
glsen.org/educator to access an online list
of recommended books and video resources,
to find grade-appropriate literature for your
school library. School libraries are a wealth of
information and provide students with literature
on many topics, including multicultural literature.
Far too often, even multicultural literature
excludes LGBTQ people and history. Imagine
being in your school library full of books about
all peoples, except people like you. Leaving out
LGBTQ people, history and events in the library
can contribute to LGBTQ students feeling
excluded from their school.

Internet filters. Work with your school
administrators to ensure that the Internet filters
are not blocking students from finding positive
and helpful information about the LGBTQ
community. Internet filters are often used in
schools to block materials harmful to students,
such as violent or pornographic sites, but they
sometimes can block useful and necessary
information. Students may be denied access to
websites that have LGBTQ-related information,
such as research, historical facts or support
services for LGBTQ youth. And in some cases,
students may be blocked from positive informa-
tion but still have access to sites condemning
LGBTQ people.

allowed to bring his boyfriend and enjoy the
special night with his fellow students. Vincent
approached one of the teachers on the prom
committee with his concerns. She promised
Vincent that there wouldn’t be a problem. After
spending hours preparing and getting ready for
the prom, Vincent and his boyfriend were rudely
told they would not be allowed in the prom on
the grounds that all couples needed to be of the
opposite sex, and that they should take their
“offensive lifestyle” somewhere else.
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What Can | Say to Make an Impact with My

Principal or Administrator?

Advocating for changes in your school will undoubtedly lead to a conversation with your
principal or administrator. Administrators are notoriously busy people — you'll likely only have
a few minutes to get your point across and make an impression. You want to make sure you
give your administrator information that will motivate them to take action and support your
efforts. Here are some tips for making the most out of those few minutes.

Be direct. Let them know exactly what you're
there for. “I'm here today to talk to you about the
need to make our school a safe space for all
students, regardless of sexual orientation, gender
identity or gender expression.” Let them know that
you support LGBTQ students, and there are some
changes that can be made in the school to help
LGBTQ students feel included and safe.

Show them why the change is necessary.
“l think there is a need for a comprehensive
anti-bullying/harassment policy (or a training for
all staff, a change in the Internet filter software,
etc.) in this school because...” Use statistics
from GLSEN’s National School Climate Survey
or results from your school’s climate survey to
inform your principal or administrator about the
prevalence of anti-LGBTQ behavior in schools and
its effects on LGBTQ students. If possible, use
statistics from a GLSEN Research Brief for your
specific state (see www.glsen.org/research) or
a local school climate survey you have conducted
in your school. Give them brief descriptions of
the anti-LGBTQ behavior you have personally
witnessed in the school.

Put the focus on safety. All school adminis-
trators have a responsibility to make sure their
schools are safe (physically and emotionally) for
the students who attend them. “As you can see
from these statistics (or incidents, stories, etc.)
the climate in the school is having an effect on the
comfort, safety, and sense of belonging of many
of the students as well as test scores, attendance
and grades.” Point out to them the negative effects
anti-LGBTQ behavior has not only on LGBTQ
students, but all students.

Show them how the school community will
benefit from the change. “These actions will help
make our school a safer and friendlier place for all
students, regardless of sexual orientation, gender
identity or gender expression.” Provide information
on how this change can result in a more positive
school climate and improve student achievement.
For example, share research from GLSEN’s
National School Climate Survey about the benefits
of having supportive school staff or a comprehen-
sive anti-bullying/harassment policy.

Give an overview of how educators can
act in allyship with LGBTQ students and the
changes the school can make. Briefly share
with them specific ways educators can act in
allyship with LGBTQ students, such as intervening
when anti-LGBTQ behavior occurs, not assuming
the sexual orientation or gender identity of their
students (or their parents) and including LGBTQ
people, history and events in their curriculum.
Briefly share with them specific ways educators
can act in allyship with LGBTQ students. Use
concrete examples like starting a GSA or making
the school’s anti-bullying policies inclusive of
sexual orientation, gender identity and gender
expression.

Leave information and schedule a follow-up
meeting. Photocopy or print key information from
the Safe Space Kit and leave copies with your
principal or administrator. Leave the information
that you think will get them to support your efforts.
If possible, try and secure some future time to
further discuss the issue. Give the principal or
administrator time to learn more and digest the
information before continuing the discussion.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADVOCATE
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Make Your Action Plan

Now that you have learned how to support LGBTQ students, it’s time you make your plan of action.
By making realistic goals and documenting them, you will be more likely to make the change you
seek. Use the questions provided to specify your next steps.

What can | do to support LGBTQ students?

What can | do to educate students and school staff?

What can | do to advocate for changes within the school?

What further resources, information, or help do | need?

GLSEN' sarespacexir






Congratulations! 37

You are ready to begin acting in allyship with
LGBTAQ students. Using the information and
strategies in this guide, you can begin enlisting
others in a common effort to transform your
school into a safe space for all students regard-
less of sexual orientation, gender identity or
gender expression. In the last section of this
guide: a list of GLSEN resources, a national
referral list for LGBTQ youth, and other re-
sources that may be useful to you. The national
referral sheet will give you helpful information
about organizations that you can refer students
to, including hotlines and a network of LGBTQ
centers. Be sure to sign up for GLSEN’s
communications via the Educators Network and
check www.glsen.org periodically for new and
updated resources.
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GLSEN is the leading national education organization
focused on ensuring safe and affirming schools for all
students. GLSEN envisions a world in which every child
learns to respect and accept all people, regardless of
sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression.
GLSEN seeks to develop school climates where
difference is valued for the positive contribution it makes
in creating a more vibrant and diverse community.






GLSEN Resources

RESOURCES FOR EDUCATORS:
Lessons and Curricular Materials

GLSEN’s Education Department offers free
curricula and lesson plans for educators to

use with elementary, middle and high school
students. These resources provide a framework
for facilitating classroom discussion and
engaging students in creating safer schools

for all, regardless of sexual orientation,

gender identity or gender expression.
www.glsen.org/educator

GLSEN'’s Ally Week®

GLSEN’s Ally Week is a student-led program
in which students hold a national conversation
about the meaning of allyship. Ally Week calls
for action from everyone. Straight and cisgen-
der allies, as well as LGBTQ youth, are encour-
aged to learn about what actions they can take
to support their LGBTQ peers. Educator allies
can use Ally Week as an opportunity to teach
lessons about compassion and diversity, and
LGBTQ youth can learn about how to support
one another’s overlapping, intersecting identi-
ties. To learn more, visit
www.glsen.org/allyweek

GLSEN’s Day of Silence®

GLSEN'’s Day of Silence® is a student-led
national event where folks take a vow of silence
to highlight the silencing and erasure of LGBTQ
people at school. Educators play a critical role
in the execution of this national day of action

by amending their lesson plans and advocating
for students who are participating. To read our
Educator Guide and learn more ways to encour-
age participation of your school in the next Day
of Silence, visit www.glsen.org/dos

week of educational and creative activities
: aimed at ending name-calling of all kinds and

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

: GLSEN’s No Name-Calling Week®

GLSEN’s No Name-Calling Week® is an annual
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providing schools with the tools and inspiration

© to launch an on-going dialogue about ways

: to eliminate bullying in their communities.

: Although the program was originally designed
. for middle schools, there are new resources
for elementary and high schools. For lessons,

resources and contest information, visit

: www.glsen.org/nncw

: Changing the Game:
: The GLSEN Sports Project

GLSEN'’s Sports Project assists schools in

creating athletic and physical education
climates based on the principles of respect,
: safety and equal access for all. Find best

practices for coaches and physical education

. teachers, as well as policy recommendations
. for athletic administrators, all focused on how
to make K—12 athletics and physical education
. safe, respectful and inclusive for students of

. all sexual orientations and gender identities.

Download and share these resources and

guidelines with your school’s physical education
: teachers and coaches.
: www.glsen.org/sports
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NFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION:
Local GLSEN Chapters

Accredited local GLSEN Chapters seek to
educate local schools and communities about
the impact of anti-LGBTQ bias and behavior,
and the benefits that come from improving
school climate with respect to LGBTQ issues.
Connect with your local Chapter today!
www.glsen.org/chapters

Educator Network

Sign up for the Educators Network to stay
up-to-date with LGBTQ-related education news,
classroom resources and upcoming events.
This regular e-newsletter highlights the
resources, tools and information you need to
create safer schools for all students.
www.glsen.org/educator

Educator Forum

Join this social networking site designed for
educators to communicate and share ideas and
resources related to creating safer schools for
all students, regardless of sexual orientation or
gender identity/expression.
www.facebook.com/groups/
glseneducatorforum

: ADDITIONAL GLSEN RESOURCES:
Jump-Start Guide for GSAs

This guide consists of eight self-contained
sections designed to help students jump-start

— or bring fresh and creative energy to — their

student club. The resources take you through

. the process of establishing or re-establishing

i your GSA/Gender and Sexuality Alliance, iden-
tifying your mission and goals, and assessing
:your school’s climate. Jump-Start your school

: and your GSA and create safer schools for all.

: www.glsen.org/gsa

Resources on Policy and Legal Issues

GLSEN believes that a quality K—12 education
is a fundamental right of every American. To

© that end, GLSEN works with elected officials
¢ and other policymakers at the local, state and
¢ federal level to ensure that the best and most

inclusive safe schools policies are considered,
passed and implemented.

Policy and legal resources available from
GLSEN at www.glsen.org/policy

Respect For All: Policy Recommendations to
Support LGBTQ Students

Model District Policy on Transgender and
Gender Nonconforming Students

Transgender Incusion in High School

Athletics

Model District Policy on LGBTQ-Inclusive

Anti-Bullying & Harassment

Model District Policy on LGBTQ-Inclusive

Anti-Bullying & Harassment
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Supporting Trans and GNC Students

Compared to other students in the LGBTQ com- :

munity, transgender and genderqueer students
face more hostile school climates. So, too, do
gender non-conforming (GNC) students, whose
gender expression does not align to traditional
gender norms. For videos, student and educa-
tor blogs, and resources on gender identity, go
to www.glsen.org/trans

Research

GLSEN'’s Research Department supports the
organization’s mission by conducting original
research, evaluating GLSEN programs and ini-
tiatives, and creating resources that document
anti-LGBTQ bias in education (K12 schools).
GLSEN Research reports include the following:

National School Climate Survey:
The Experiences of LGBTQ Youth in Our
Nation’s Schools

From Teasing to Torment: School Climate in
America, A Survey of Students and Teachers

Shared Differences: The Experiences of
LGBTQ Students of Color in Our Nation’s
Schools

Harsh Realities: The Experiences of
Transgender Youth in Our Nation’s Schools

The Principal’s Perspective: School Safety,
Bullying and Harassment

Involved, Invisible, Ignored: The Experiences
of Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender
Parents and Their Children in Our Nation’s
K—-12 Schools

GLSEN Research Briefs (includes
summary of research on GSAs and state
specific information on school experiences
of LGBTQ students).
www.glsen.org/research

Partner Organizations

GLSEN is proud to partner with many organiza-
tions to strengthen the network of support
available to LGBTQ youth and advocates for
safe schools.

Advocates for Youth

Advocates for Youth champions efforts to help
¢ young people make informed and responsible
decisions about their reproductive and sexual

health. Advocates believes it can best serve the

field by boldly advocating for a more positive and

realistic approach to adolescent sexual health.

. www.advocatesforyouth.org

Family Equality Council

The Family Equality Council works to ensure
: equality for LGBTQ families by building commu-

nity, changing hearts and minds, and advancing

social justice for all families.
. www.familyequality.org

interACT

Advocates for Intersex Youth, the only intersex-

led law and policy organization in the United
States, uses innovative policy, media, and youth
leadership strategies to advance the human
rights of children born with intersex traits.

: www.interactadvocates.org

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
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National Association of
Multicultural Education (NAME)

NAME celebrates cultural and ethnic diversity
as a national strength that enriches a society
and rejects the view that diversity threatens
the fabric of a society. NAME believes that
multicultural education promotes equity for all
regardless of culture, ethnicity, race, language,
age, gender, sexual orientation, belief system
or exceptionality.
www.nameorg.org

National Center for Transgender Equality
(NCTE)

NCTE is a national social justice organization
devoted to ending discrimination and violence
against transgender people through education
and advocacy on national issues of importance
to transgender people. NCTE facilitates a
strong and clear voice for transgender equality
in the nation’s capital and around the country.
www.transequality.org

National Education Association (NEA)

The National Education Association, the
nation’s largest professional employee organi-
zation, is committed to advancing the cause of

public education. NEA’s 3 million members work

at every level of education—from pre-school to
university graduate programs. NEA has affiliate
organizations in every state and in more than
14,000 communities across the United States.
www.hea.org
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PFLAG

PFLAG promotes the health and well-being of
gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender persons,

their families and friends through: support, to

cope with an adverse society; education, to
enlighten an ill-informed public; and advocacy

: to end discrimination and to secure equal civil

rights. PFLAG provides opportunity for dialogue
about sexual orientation and gender identity,
and acts to create a society that is healthy and
respectful of human diversity.

www.pflag.org

The Safe Schools Coalition

The Safe Schools Coalition is an international

public-private partnership in support of gay,
lesbian, bisexual and transgender youth, that is

© working to help schools — at home and all over
¢ the world — become safe places where every

: family can belong, where every educator can
teach, and where every child can learn, regard-

less of gender identity or sexual orientation.

: www.safeschoolscoalition.org

Teaching Tolerance

Teaching Tolerance is dedicated to reducing

prejudice, improving intergroup relations and
supporting equitable school experiences for our
nation’s children. Teaching Tolerance provides

free educational materials to teachers and other

school practitioners in the U.S. and abroad.

© www.tolerance.org
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Referrals for
LGBTQ Students

SUPPORT

Refer your students to these organizations
if they are in need of support or counseling.
Familiarize yourself with local resources for
LGBTQ students.

The Trevor Project

The Trevor Project is a national organization
focused on crisis and suicide prevention efforts
among lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and
questioning (LGBTQQ) youth.
www.thetrevorproject.org

Hotline: 866-4Utrevor/866-488-7386

CenterLink

The Community of LGBTQ Centers exists to
support the development of strong, sustainable
LGBTQ community centers and to build a
unified center movement. CenterLink’s directory
of LGBTQ community centers in the US and
internationally is online in a new and

improved format.

www.LGBTcenters.org

GLBT National Help Center

Provides free and confidential telephone and
e-mail peer-counseling, information and local
resources for gay, lesbian, bisexual, transgen-
der and questioning youth.

www.ginh.org

Hotline: 800-246-PRIDE

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Refer students to these organizations if they are
in need of legal assistance.
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American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU)

© The ACLU works to extend rights to segments
of our population that have traditionally been

: denied their rights, including people of color;

: women; lesbians, gay men, bisexuals and

: transgender people; prisoners; and people

© with disabilities.

: www.aclu.org

Lambda Legal
Lambda Legal is a national organization

: committed to achieving full recognition of the

: civil rights of lesbians, gay men, bisexuals,
transgender people and those with HIV

: through impact litigation, education and public

policy work.

www.lambdalegal.org

The National Center for Lesbian Rights

A non-profit, public interest law firm that
: advocates for equitable public policies affect-

ing LGBTQ community, provides free legal

: assistance to LGBTQ clients and their legal

: advocates, and conducts community education
: on LGBTQ legal issues.

www.nclrights.org
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Glossary of LGBTQ-Related Terms

The glossary is designed to provide basic definitions of words and phrases commonly used
in discussions about lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender people and related issues. All
language is constantly evolving; new terms are introduced, while others fade from use or
change their meaning over time. This remains true for the following terms and definitions.
For terms that refer to people’s identities, people must self-identity for these terms to be

appropriately used to describe them.

Ableism: A system of oppression that benefits
able-bodied people at the expense of people
with disabilities.

Ally: A member of the majority or dominant group
who works to end oppression by recognizing their
own privilege and supporting or advocating for
the oppressed population. For example, a straight
cisgender person who supports and stands up for
the equality of LGBTQ people.

Asexual: A person who does not experience sexual
attraction, but may experience other forms of attrac-
tion (e.g., intellectual, emotional). Asexual people
may also identify as “bisexual,” “gay,” “lesbian,”
“pansexual,” “queer,” “straight,” and many more.

Bisexual: A person who is emotionally and/or physi-
cally attracted to two or more genders, often used to
describe people attracted to “genders like theirs” and
“other genders.”

Bodily Characteristics: Physical traits that com-
pose one’s body; i.e. primary characteristics such
as chromosomes, genitals, internal reproductive
organs, hormone levels, and secondary characteris-
tics such as facial hair, chest development, etc.

Cisgender: A person whose gender identity and
expression are aligned with the gender they were
assigned at birth or by society.

Classism: A system of oppression that benefits
people with high and middle socioeconomic
status at the expense of people with lower
socioeconomic status.

Coming Out: The ongoing process that an LGBTQ
person goes through, to recognize their own identi-
ties pertaining to sexual orientation and/or gender
identity and gender expression, and to be open
about them with others.

Dyke: A derogatory term directed at a person
perceived as a lesbian. It is oftentimes used against
women who are gender nonconforming, with the
assumption being that their gender nonconformity
implies a sexual attraction to women. Many lesbians
(of all gender-expressions) have reclaimed the term
and use it as an affirming label with which to identify.

Fag/Faggot: A derogatory term directed at a person
perceived as a gay man. It is oftentimes used
against men who are gender nonconforming, with
the assumption being that their gender nonconfor-
mity implies a sexual attraction to men.

Gay: Someone, who can be transgender or cisgen-
der, who is generally attracted to someone of the
same gender.

Gender: A set of cultural identities, expressions and
roles — codified as feminine or masculine — that are
assigned to people, based upon the interpretation

of their bodies, and more specifically, their sexual
and reproductive anatomy. Since gender is a social
construction, it is possible to reject or modify the
assignment made, and develop something that feels
truer and just to oneself.
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Gender Binary: A socially constructed system

of viewing gender as consisting solely of two
categories, “male” and “female,” in which no other
possibilities for gender are believed to exist. The
gender binary is inaccurate because it does not take
into account the diversity of gender identities and
gender expressions among all people. The gender
binary is oppressive to anyone that does not conform
to dominant societal gender norms.

Gender Expression: The multiple ways (e.g.,
behaviors, dress) in which a person may choose to
communicate gender to oneself and/or to others.

Gender Identity: How an individual identifies in
terms of their gender. Gender identities may include,
“male,” “female,” “androgynous,” “transgender,”
“genderqueer” and many others, or a

combination thereof.

” .

Genderism: Genderism may take the form of trans-
phobia, bias and discrimination towards transgender
and gender nonconforming people.

Gender Nonconforming or Gender Variant: A per-
son whose gender identity and/or gender expression
does not conform to the gender they were assigned
at birth or by society. People who identify as “gender
nonconforming” may or may not also identify as
“transgender.”

Heterosexism: A system of oppression that benefits
straight/heterosexual people at the expense of
lesbian, gay and bisexual people. Heterosexism
may take the form of Homophobia or Biphobia,

bias and discrimination towards lesbian, gay and
bisexual people.

Homosexual: A person who is emotionally and/or
physically attracted to some members of the same
gender. Many people prefer the terms “lesbian” or

“gay,” instead.

Identity: Identity is how we understand ourselves,
what we call ourselves and often who we connect to
and associate with. Each of us has a unique diversity
of social identities based on our sexual orientation,
gender identity, race/ethnicity, socioeconomic
status, religion and other important parts of who we
are. Those identities develop over time, intersect
with each other and help give meaning to our lives.
Below, you'll find many common terms that people
use to identify themselves, especially in relation to
their sexual orientation, gender identity and gender
expression. It’s important to remember that these
terms are about self-identification; no one can tell
anyone else how to identify or what terms to use.

Intersex: People who have any range of bodily
characteristics that may not fit typical expectations
for “male” or “female” development. Some intersex
traits are identified at birth, while others may not be
discovered until puberty or later in life. There are
over thirty specific medical terms for intersex varia-
tions and each intersex person is different. Experts
estimate that as many as 1.7% of people are born
intersex.

Lesbian: Someone, who can be transgender or
cisgender, who generally considers themself a
woman or femme who is attracted to other women
and/or femmes.

LGBTQ: An umbrella term referring to people who
identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and/
or queer. The acronym can also include additional
letters, in reference to other identities that do not
conform to dominant societal norms.

Nonbinary: An umbrella term for people who do not
identify with the binary of man/woman or masculine/
feminine. Nonbinary people are often included
under the trans umbrella, but not all may identify as
transgender. Other genders that may be included
under the nonbinary umbrella are genderqueer,
genderfluid, and agender.

WWW.GLSEN.ORG ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
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Oppression: Systems of power and privilege,
based on bias, which benefit some social groups
over others. Oppression can 1) take many forms,
including ideological, institutional, interpersonal and
internalized; 2) be intentional and unintentional; 3)
be conscious and unconscious; and 4) be visible
and invisible. Oppression prevents the oppressed
groups and individuals from being free and equal.
Many people face oppression based on more than
one of their identities, creating a unique complexity
of challenges and resilience.

Pansexual: A person who is emotionally and/or
physically attracted to some people, regardless of
their gender identity.

Person of Color: A person who identifies as
African-American/Black, Latino/Hispanic, Native
American/First Nation, Asian and Pacific Islander,
Middle Eastern and/or having mixed ancestry may
also identify as a “Person of Color.”

Pronouns: The pronoun or set of pronouns that a
person identifies with and would like to be called
when their proper name is not being used. Examples
include “she/her/hers,” “he/him/his,” ze/hir/hirs,” and
“they/them/theirs.” Some people prefer no pronouns
at all. For more information, refer to GLSEN’s
Educator Resource on Pronouns at www.glsen.org/
trans.

Queer: An umbrella term used to describe a sexual
orientation, gender identity or gender expression that
does not conform to dominant societal norms. While
it is used as a neutral, or even a positive term among
many LGBTQ people today, historically “queer” was
used as a derogatory slur.

Questioning: A person who is in the process of
understanding and exploring what their sexual orien-
tation and/or gender identity and gender expression
might be.

Racism: A system of oppression that benefits white
people at the expense of people of color.

Reclaimed Words: As language evolves, some
individuals and communities choose to identify with
terms that had previously been used as slurs against
them. The words are “reclaimed” and given new
meaning, often imbued with a sense of pride and
resilience. Examples include, “queer,” “dyke,” and
“tranny,” among others. It’s important to remember
that identity is unique to each individual; not all
members of a community readily accept the use of
reclaimed words, as they may still find them offen-
sive and hurtful.

Sexism: A system of oppression that benefits
male-identified people at the expense of female-
identified people.

Sexual Orientation: The inner feelings of who a
person is attracted to emotionally and/or physically,
in relation to their own gender identity. Some people
may identify as “asexual,” “bisexual,” “gay,” “lesbian,”
“pansexual,” “queer,” “straight,” and many more.

Straight or Heterosexual: A person who is
emotionally and/or physically attracted to some
members of another gender (specifically, a male-
identified person who is attracted to some females
or a female-identified person who is attracted to
some males).

Tranny: A derogatory term directed at a transgender
person. Some transgender people have reclaimed
the term and use it as an affirming label with which
to identify.

Transgender: An umbrella term describing people
whose gender identity does not match the gender
they were assigned at birth or by society.
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From:

To: Nathan Burns
Subject: SAGA Club"s Idea
Date: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 8:43:23 PM

Please be cautious
This email was sent from outside the Nashua School District

Dear Mr. Burns,

My name is [ if and ' am the president of North’s SAGA club. | am emailing you
because there is something | would like to discuss with you.

I would like to know if it is possible to get a pride flag hung up on the flag pole outside the
school. Of course, SAGA can provide the flag, but | would like to know if it is possible.
Having a pride flag in the school, even if it isn’t on the flag pole, would be an amazing way
to show all of our LGBTQ+ students that they are welcome in this school. As a student who
has been scared to be myself my whole life, | think something as simple as a pride flag
could not only make our out students more comfortable, but also our closeted students.
High school is a rough time for many students, especially our queer students, however |
believe this is a good and subtle way to make people feel more comfortable in not only their
school environment, but also with themselves. Being LGBTQ+ is not a bad thing and |
would love for there to be a way to really show that.

I hope you will consider what I've said and | hope we can reach an agreement on this.
Sincerely,



From: Paul Menard

To: Nathan Burns; MaryJean Flanagan
Subject: SAGA fundraiser

Date: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 2:51:52 PM
Nate and MJ,

The SAGA group would like to do one more event/fundraiser this year. | know there is an
official process for holding fundraisers (one of these days I'll remember what it is. . .) so, |
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
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